Public Document Pack

1289 OXFORDSHIRE
) COUNTY COUNCIL

To: Members of the Audit & Governance Committee

Notice of a Meeting of the Audit & Governance
Committee

Thursday, 6 September 2018 at 3.00 pm

Rooms 1&2 - County Hall, New Road, Oxford OX1 1ND

/G Clot

Peter G. Clark
Chief Executive August 2018

Committee Officers: Colm O Caomhéanaigh, Tel 07393 001096; E-mail:
colm.ocaomhanaigh@oxfordshire.gov.uk

Membership

Chairman — Councillor Nick Carter
Deputy Chairman - Councillor Tony llott

Councillors
Paul Buckley Charles Mathew Roz Smith
lan Corkin D. Mcllveen
Helen Evans Les Sibley
Co-optee

Dr Geoff Jones

Notes:

* Date of next meeting: 12 September 2018

County Hall, New Road, Oxford, OX1 1ND
www.oxfordshire.gov.uk Fax: 01865 783195 Media Enquiries 01865 323870



http://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/

Declarations of Interest

The duty to declare.....

Under the Localism Act 2011 it is a criminal offence to

(a) fail to register a disclosable pecuniary interest within 28 days of election or co-option (or re-
election or re-appointment), or

(b) provide false or misleading information on registration, or

(c) participate in discussion or voting in a meeting on a matter in which the member or co-opted
member has a disclosable pecuniary interest.

Whose Interests must be included?

The Act provides that the interests which must be notified are those of a member or co-opted

member of the authority, or

o those of a spouse or civil partner of the member or co-opted member;

e those of a person with whom the member or co-opted member is living as husband/wife

o those of a person with whom the member or co-opted member is living as if they were civil
partners.

(in each case where the member or co-opted member is aware that the other person has the

interest).

What if | remember that | have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest during the Meeting?.

The Code requires that, at a meeting, where a member or co-opted member has a disclosable
interest (of which they are aware) in any matter being considered, they disclose that interest to
the meeting. The Council will continue to include an appropriate item on agendas for all
meetings, to facilitate this.

Although not explicitly required by the legislation or by the code, it is recommended that in the
interests of transparency and for the benefit of all in attendance at the meeting (including
members of the public) the nature as well as the existence of the interest is disclosed.

A member or co-opted member who has disclosed a pecuniary interest at a meeting must not
participate (or participate further) in any discussion of the matter; and must not participate in any
vote or further vote taken; and must withdraw from the room.

Members are asked to continue to pay regard to the following provisions in the code that “You
must serve only the public interest and must never improperly confer an advantage or
disadvantage on any person including yourself’ or “You must not place yourself in situations
where your honesty and integrity may be questioned.....”.

Please seek advice from the Monitoring Officer prior to the meeting should you have any doubt
about your approach.

List of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests:
Employment (includes“any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit
or gain”.), Sponsorship, Contracts, Land, Licences, Corporate Tenancies, Securities.

For a full list of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests and further Guidance on this matter please see
the Guide to the New Code of Conduct and Register of Interests at Members’ conduct guidelines.
http://intranet.oxfordshire.gov.uk/wps/wcm/connect/occ/Insite/Elected+members/ or contact
Glenn Watson on 07776 997946 or glenn.watson@oxfordshire.gov.uk for a hard copy of the
document.

If you have any special requirements (such as a large print version of
these papers or special access facilities) please contact the officer
named on the front page, but please give as much notice as possible
before the meeting.

7\/%7:/{7;) recycled paper @
(Y



http://intranet.oxfordshire.gov.uk/wps/wcm/connect/occ/Insite/Elected+members/
mailto:glenn.watson@oxfordshire.gov.uk

AGENDA

1.  Apologies for Absence and Temporary Appointments
2. Declaration of Interests - see guidance note
3. Minutes (Pages 1 - 10)

To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 25 July 2018 and to receive information
arising from them.

4. Petitions and Public Address

5. Implementing A New Operating Model For Oxfordshire County
Council (Pages 11 - 386)

Report from the Chief Executive.

The Audit and Governance Committee was updated in March 2018 on the progress of
the Council’s Fit for the Future Transformation programme and was introduced to the
development of a new Operating Model for the Council as a whole.

The Operating Model is a detailed description of how the Council will work in the future,
with the key aims of putting better outcomes for residents and the delivery of the
Thriving Communities Vision at the centre of all plans and operations.

The Committee is RECOMMENDED to:

a) Note the contents of this report and its attachments;

b) Comment on any issues relating to the operating model and its impact on
the Council’s current and future performance;

c) Comment on the ongoing role of the Committee in engaging with the
delivery of the Operating Model, if agreed.

Close of meeting

An explanation of abbreviations and acronyms is available on request from the Chief
Internal Auditor.

7\/%7:/{7;) recycled paper ‘Qgc%\,
(Y



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 3

AUDIT & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

MINUTES of the meeting held on Wednesday, 25 July 2018 commencing at 1.30 pm
and finishing at 5.30 pm

Present:

Voting Members:

Non-voting Members:

By Invitation:

Officers:

Whole of meeting

Part of meeting

Agenda Item
a

9
12,13
14

15

Councillor Nick Carter — in the Chair

Councillor Tony llott (Deputy Chairman)

Councillor lan Corkin

Councillor Charles Mathew

Councillor D. Mcllveen

Councillor Les Sibley

Councillor Roz Smith

Councillor Liz Brighouse OBE (In place of Councillor
Helen Evans)

Councillor John Howson (In place of Councillor Paul
Buckley)

Dr Geoff Jones

Paul King, Ernst & Young
Jenny Lewis, Director of HR, Hampshire County Council

Lorna Baxter, Director for Finance; lan Dyson, Assistant
Chief Finance Officer (Assurance); Sarah Cox, Chief
Internal Auditor; Colm O Caomhanaigh, Committee
Officer

Officer Attending

Hannah Doney, Strategic Finance Manager (Accounting
and Reporting)

Tim Chapple, Financial Manager (Treasury)

Nick Graham, Director for Law and Governance

Steve Munn, Director for HR; Fiona Percival, County HR
Manager

Frank Dick, Interim Programme Manager, Property & FM

The Committee considered the matters, reports and recommendations contained or
referred to in the agenda for the meeting, together with a schedule of addenda
tabled at the meeting and decided as set out below. Except as insofar as otherwise
specified, the reasons for the decisions are contained in the agenda, reports and
schedule, copies of which are attached to the signed Minutes.

Page 1



35/18

36/18

37/18

38/18

39/18

ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN FOR THE COUNCIL YEAR 2018/19
(Agenda No. 1)

Councillor Liz Brighouse moved and Councillor John Howson seconded that
Councillor Roz Smith be elected Chairman of the Committee for the 2018/19 Council
Year.

Councillor Tony llott moved and Councillor Charles Mathew seconded that Councillor
Nick Carter be elected Chairman of the Committee for the 2018/19 Council Year.

Both nominations were put to a vote. There were 3 votes for Councillor Roz Smith
and 4 votes for Councillor Nick Carter.

RESOLVED: that Councillor Nick Carter be elected Chairman of the Committee
for the 2018/19 Council Year.

ELECTION OF DEPUTY CHAIRMAN FOR THE COUNCIL YEAR 2018/19
(Agenda No. 2)

Councillor Nick Carter moved and Councillor Charles Mathew seconded that
Councillor Tony llott be elected Deputy Chairman of the Committee for the 2018/19
Council Year.

RESOLVED: that Councillor Tony llott be elected Deputy Chairman of the
Committee for the 2018/19 Council Year.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND TEMPORARY APPOINTMENTS
(Agenda No. 3)

Apologies were received from Councillor Paul Buckley (Councillor John Howson
substituting) and Councillor Helen Evans (Councillor Liz Brighouse substituting).

DECLARATION OF INTERESTS - SEE GUIDANCE NOTE
(Agenda No. 4)

In relation to Agenda Item 12, Councillor lan Corkin and Councillor Tony llott declared
that they were also councillors for Cherwell District Council.

MINUTES
(Agenda No. 5)

The minutes of the meeting of 25 April 2018 were approved and signed.

The Chairman asked Officers for updates on a number of items arising from the
minutes:

e 26/18: lan Dyson responded that he did not have an update on the delay in

providing a centre for placements of Looked After Children but he undertook to
look into it.

Page 2



40/18

41/18

e 29/18: Sarah Cox reported that there is a GDPR Audit underway now which will
find if there is any issue with leavers still on the IT system.

INTERNAL AUDIT CHARTER
(Agenda No. 10)

Sarah Cox introduced the report. It is a requirement of the Public Sector Internal
Audit Standards to have an Internal Audit Charter and it is subject to annual approval
by the Audit & Governance Committee. An external assessment by CIPFA was very
positive, identifying a small number of minor improvements. All of their
recommendations have been implemented.

Members thanked the Audit Team for their work in completing the recommended
actions and asked what kind of changes have been made. Sarah Cox gave an
example where a reference to the standards should have been included. The full list
of recommendations is in Appendix 3.

RESOLVED: to
a) approve the Internal Audit Charter;
b) note the Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme; and

C) note that the recommendations from the External Assessment have been
fully implemented.

COUNTER-FRAUD PLAN 2018/19
(Agenda No. 11)

Sarah Cox introduced the report. In March when the Committee was last updated on
this it looked like a partnership with Oxford City Council would soon be in place.
While that is still the long-term goal, the plan for the next year or two will be for the
City Council to deliver an investigation service and receive referrals. It is expected
that this will result in more proactive investigations.

Members raised a number of issues and Officers responded as follows:

e A more proactive approach includes greater capture of information and improved
training.

e The advantages in working with the City Council include:

o They have the professional expertise and the issues are becoming more
complex.

o They already have links with the District Councils and the County Council’s
aim is to have an overall view for Oxfordshire.

e Resources will be added if the Council identifies that there is value in it.

e The team has not done school audits for some time — assurance is through
sampling — so the conversion of many schools to academies will not free up audit
resources.

e The service needs to be promoted as that will have a preventative effect.

Page 3



42/18

The County Council plans to pay a fixed fee equivalent to 1 full time post or
around £30,000.

RESOLVED: to note the Counter Fraud Strategy and Plan for 2018/19.

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2017/18
(Agenda No. 7)

The report and addenda were introduced by Lorna Baxter and Hannah Doney. The
earlier deadline for completion of accounts and the change in personnel were
handled very well and the accounts were ready for signing.

Members raised issues and the following responses were given by Officers and Paul
King of the external auditors, EY:

The external auditors were happy that the difference of £7.7m between the
estimated Pension Fund net asset share for the Council and the actual share was
essentially a timing issue, as the actual position was known at the time when the
final audit took place, but would not have been known at the time that the draft
accounts were prepared. So it was not a reflection of an error or omission on
either the part of the actuary or the Council.

The external auditors are close to resolving the objection lodged to the 2015/16
accounts in respect of LOBO loans. The auditors are also considering further
information provided by the Council in respect of the Pension Fund climate risk
objection in respect of the 2016/17 accounts. It is not anticipated that the
outcomes will have an impact on the accounts or Value for money Conclusion.
The external auditors would not advise on the Pension Fund investment strategy.
They would consider whether risk has been considered properly and that
professional advice is taken. The decision that the costs of valuing heritage
assets would be disproportionate was taken several years ago by officers. This
mostly related to the County Museum. Building valuations are included.
Regarding security bonds, such as those from S106 agreements, guarantees do
not feature as assets.

If a school voluntarily becomes an academy it must pay any deficit balance to the
Council.

The total of current claims relating to Municipal Mutual Insurance Plc is around
£4m. New claims this year were around £50,000.

It was agreed to supply information regarding the use of funds from the Thomas
Gifford Charity and the value of Cogges Museum on the balance sheet after the
meeting.

RESOLVED: to

a)
b)

c)

Consider and approve the Statement of Accounts 2017/18 at Annex 1;
Note the Summary Accounts 2017/18 at Annex 2;

Agree the addition to the Annual Governance Statement as described in
paragraph 8 of the Addenda to the Statement of Accounts 2017/18;

Page 4



43/18

44/18

d) Consider and approve the Letter of Representations 2017/18 for the
Oxfordshire County Council accounts at Annex 3;

e) Consider and approve the Letter of Representations 2017/18 for the
Oxfordshire Pension Fund accounts at Annex 4;

f) Agree that the Director of Finance, in consultation with the Chairman of
the Committee (or Deputy Chairman in his absence), can make any
further changes to the Statement of Accounts 2017/18 and / or letters of
representation that may arise during completion of the audit.

ERNST & YOUNG - FINAL ACCOUNTS AUDIT
(Agenda No. 8)

Paul King introduced the audit results reports for Oxfordshire County Council and the
Oxfordshire Pension Fund. He noted that some of the issues he had wished to
address had already been discussed under the previous item. There were no issues
with meeting the earlier deadline for publishing the audited statement of accounts,
and thanked the Council’s finance team for their help and support in meeting the
deadline, or with the change of custodian for the pension fund.

Members raised a number of issues on the report which Paul King addressed as
follows:

e The external auditors absorbed the fee for specialist valuation advice on the
museum building evaluation last year but cannot do so this year. Similarly, the
issues relating to the significant risk to the Value for Money Conclusion
concerning Carillion will result in extra fees.

e The graph on page 260 is included to demonstrate that the planned use of
reserves and projected savings should result in a continued reducing trajectory for
borrowings.

e The external auditors can confirm that from the information and evidence
available, the Council has the discretion to charge for DIY waste.

RESOLVED: to note the reports.

TREASURY MANAGEMENT OUTTURN 2017/18
(Agenda No. 9)

Tim Chapple introduced the report which addressed debt and investment activity. No
new borrowing was arranged during 2017/18. Performance indicators show that
Oxfordshire had a higher than average rate of return with a lower than average risk.

Officers responded to Members’ questions as follows:

e The benchmarking club is not required for risk monitoring but the statistics are
useful to know and there is no fee.

e The Council had two loans with Northamptonshire County Council. One has been
repaid and the other is expected to be repaid on time on 7 September 2018. The
Section 114 notice does not apply to expenditure already contracted.

Page 5



45/18

e Officers meet with Arlingclose advisors twice a year and are in regular contact.
The maturity limits listed on Page 333 of the Agenda are those advised by
Arlingclose.

RESOLVED: to note the report, and to RECOMMEND Council to note the
Council’s Treasury Management Activity in 2017/18.

JOINT WORKING ARRANGEMENTS WITH CHERWELL DC: MANAGING

CONFLICTS OF INTEREST
(Agenda No. 12)

Nick Graham introduced the report which set out how the joint working arrangements
with Cherwell District Council (CDC) will manage conflicts of interest. The Council
already has arrangements to deal with any conflicts that can arise for existing staff.

Members welcomed the reference to the importance of “auditable correspondence” in
maintaining transparency in the procedures.

Councillor lan Corkin and Councillor Tony llott, who are both also members of
Cherwell District Council, welcomed the report. Their experience of joint working
arrangements with South Northamptonshire Council (SNC) was a positive one and
they emphasised the importance of a clear Section 113 agreement.

Councillor John Howson noted that the arrangements would need to include
references to ‘dual hat' councillors as that did not arise in the CDC/SNC
arrangement.

Nick Graham responded to Members’ questions as follows:

e He felt that it was better to present this document first rather than bring all
documents to the next meeting and possibly overload the agenda. The next step
— the Section 113 agreement — is being drafted.

e He emphasised the wording that the Councils “will endeavour to” avoid adopting
contradictory policies. It does not say “must”.

e This arrangement is different from that with Hampshire which has no shared
teams.

e The process will be overseen by the Monitoring Officer and the Committee will
receive regular updates as specified in recommendation b).

Members discussed the wording of recommendation c) and agreed amendments to
make it clear that changes to the Constitution will only be made following the
endorsement by the Committee of the Section 113 agreement.

RESOLVED: to

(@) To note and endorse the potential adoption of a conflicts of interests
protocol and ethical walls policy;

(b)  To regularly monitor the operation of the protocols and policy; and

Page 6



46/18

47/18

48/18

(c) To delegate authority to the Monitoring Officer to make any further
adjustments to these documents and bring them back to the next
meeting of the Committee with the S113 agreement for endorsement
and make the necessary changes to the Council’s Constitution
thereafter.

COUNTY RETURNING OFFICER APPOINTMENT
(Agenda No. 13)

Nick Graham introduced the report. The current Chief Executive, Peter Clark, has
been the Council’'s Returning Officer since 2015. As he is leaving with effect from the
30 September 2018, it is necessary to appoint a replacement and it is this
Committee’s delegated decision to make the appointment. The new Joint Chief
Executive, Yvonne Rees, has considerable experience in this area and it is proposed
to appoint her as Returning Officer from 1 October 2018.

RESOLVED: to appoint Yvonne Rees, in her capacity as Joint Chief Executive
and Head of Paid Service, to the role of County Returning Officer as from 1
October 2018.

SAFER RECRUITMENT AUDIT
(Agenda No. 14)

Steve Munn introduced the report which updated the Committee on progress on
resolving the IT issue relating to DBS checks since the last report in April. He
emphasised as stated in paragraph 7.1 of the report that no employees have been
recruited without having the required DBS check at point of recruitment.

Steve Munn, Fiona Percival and Jenny Lewis of Hampshire County Council
responded to points raised by Members as follows:

e The training and guidance for managers includes the importance of checking
employment history, including any gaps.

e The current policy of reviewing DBS checks every three years is being reviewed.

e Taxi drivers employed on school runs are checked by our transport service and
must have a badge.

e The error was sporadic but the software bug has been fixed. Currently the check
is manual but it is intended to automate it in the long-term.

e Employees are contractually obliged to disclose convictions. We are
recommending that managers ask about this annually in a one-to-one.

RESOLVED: to support the actions being taken to resolve the discrepancies in
our recording system and the actions being taken to ensure rechecks are
consistently carried out every three years.

out every three years.

UPDATE ON CARILLION RECOVERY PLAN
(Agenda No. 15)

Page 7



49/18

Frank Dick introduced the report, giving apologies on behalf of Alexandra Bailey who
was on annual leave. He summarised the four phases of the Recovery Plan and
outlined the progress currently on phase 3 — the assessment of the legacy issues. It
is expected that the assessment will cost £1.7m and that can be managed from
current resources. The overall cost to the Council of Carillion’s collapse is still
uncertain but will probably be spread over a five-year programme.

Members noted that concerns had been raised up to five years ago and that an
argument was made at the start that there should have been a break clause in the
contract.

Officers responded to Members’ questions as follows:

e OCC is working with the Local Government Association to organise a conference
of councils affected on 2 October in London. The meeting will consider collective
action.

e Lessons learned include more robust contract management with clear KPIs and
retaining an in-house client function.

e Our finance department is keeping a close eye on other big providers.

e An implementation plan will be drawn up and can be shared with Members.

e Project managers will have the responsibility of communicating with schools
affected.

e Surveys will be checked by an in-house team.

RESOLVED: to

a) consider and comment on progress in implementation of the Recovery
Plan;

b) note that there are likely to be substantial rectification costs relating to a
range of legacy issues, which will be more fully quantified following
completion of the assessments and audits now underway;

C) note that these costs will be considered within the council’s annual
budget cycle and processes for 2019/2020.

AUDIT WORKING GROUP REPORT
(Agenda No. 16)

Sarah Cox introduced the report and the discussion focussed on the Mental Health
Update which still has a red report. Work is continuing on the return of responsibility
for over 65s to OCC'’s locality teams. The issue will be discussed again by the Audit
Working Group at its meeting on 5 December 2018.

The discussion has focussed on management of the contract. The Performance
Scrutiny Committee could monitor the outcomes. It was agreed that the work of both
Committees should be coordinated through the meeting of Scrutiny Chairs.

RESOLVED: to note the report.

Page 8



50/18 COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME
(Agenda No. 17)

The Committee made the following changes to the Work Programme:
12 September 2018

Add “Update on the Financial Management Action Plan”.
Add “Joint Working Arrangements with Cherwell”.

Defer “Governance of the Housing and Growth Deal” to 14 November 2018.

14 November 2018
Add “Update on Carillion Recovery Plan”

It was agreed to move the start time of the extra meeting on 6 September to 3pm in
order to avoid a clash with a political group meeting.

It was agreed to move the start time of the meeting on 12 September to 1.30pm due
to the long agenda expected. The private briefing which is scheduled to precede that
meeting will now be held between Noon and 1pm.

The Chairman stated that he would review the schedule of meetings with Officers
given the number of items that need to be scheduled.

in the Chair

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 5

Division(s): All

AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITEE - 6 SEPTEMBER 2018

IMPLEMENTING A NEW OPERATING MODEL FOR OXFORDSHIRE
COUNTY COUNCIL

Report by the Chief Executive

Introduction

1. The Audit and Governance Committee was updated in March 2018 on the
progress of the Council’s Fit for the Future Transformation programme and
was introduced to the development of a new Operating Model for the Council
as a whole.

2. The Operating Model is a detailed description of how the Council will work in
the future, with the key aims of putting better outcomes for residents and the
delivery of the Thriving Communities Vision at the centre of all plans and
operations.

3. Development activity since March has produced a detailed design for the
Operating Model and Cabinet is due to consider the proposal on 18
September 2018. Further detailed work on implementation will be required
beyond the agreement of the Operating Model. Therefore, a subsequent
report on the investment required for implementation and a recommended
strategy for delivery will be considered by Cabinet in October 2018.
Consideration of identified financial benefits from delivery of the Operating
Model will be developed as part of the Service and Resource Planning
process for ultimate agreement by Council in February 2019.

4. The draft Cabinet Report and Annexes, including the full Business Case for
the Target Operating Model (which incorporates an Executive Summary), are
attached to this report.

5. This paper highlights, in brief, specific areas of the Operating Model which
may be of particular interest to the Committee. It goes on to recommend that
the committee notes the content of this report and comment on any issues
relating to the proposed adoption of the Operating Model.

Background Information
6. The background to the development of the Operating Model and the
development of a Case for Change were considered by the Committee in

March and are not repeated here. They are set out in full within the attached
draft Cabinet report.

Page 11 !



10.

11.

12.

13.

The Business Case

The purpose, approach and structure of the Business Case for a new
Operating Model are set out in the attached Cabinet report.

Fundamentally, the Operating Model seeks to describe the way that the
Council will function in the future. The Operating Model, in itself, does not
determine what the Council will do but how it will work. It is therefore closely
aligned to the Corporate Plan and the wider strategic policy and planning
framework which set out the Council’s agreed priorities and objectives and is
integral to the delivery of that framework.

The business case is set out in full at Annex 1 of the Cabinet report,
introduced with an Executive Summary.

Members of the Audit and Governance Committee may be particularly
interested in the following areas of the Cabinet Report, the Operating Model
and the associated Business Case:

Internal control arrangements for the transformation programme

From paragraph 68, the Cabinet report sets out governance arrangements for
the transformation programme itself. The report goes on (from paragraph 73)
to propose a set of delivery principles that will guide future detailed decision
making within the programme governance arrangements.

Governance arrangements in the new Operating Model

This section (section 4f, slide 229) describes the proposals for how working
under a new Operating Model would impact on the Council’s internal delivery
governance (i.e. that under the responsibility of the Council’s officers) and
outlines what development is needed from the current capabilities. It should be
noted that the Operating Model is intended to work with any political
governance structure and so is not dependent and does not pre-judge the
outcomes of the ongoing Governance Review.

The Financial Case

This section of the Business Case (section 5, slide 257) sets out the financial
case for change in terms of the programme itself.

Page 12



14.

15.

16.

Financial Implications

The Cabinet report sets out the relationship between the savings from
transformation already required in the Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP)
and the proposals within the Operating Model. This Cabinet Report deals with
how existing MTFP savings will be delivered through the implementation of the
Operating Model and will not in itself lead to review of the MTFP. However,
the extent to which the Council chooses to apply the model and the approach
to implementation will have an impact which will be incorporated through the
usual Service and Resource Planning processes, throughout the lifetime of the
programme, and agreed by members in the usual way.

Risks

Section 8 of the Business Case (slide 324) sets out high-level risks that have
been identified as part of the design of the Operating Model. If implementation
is agreed, these risks will need to be incorporated into appropriate programme

risk management processes and if necessary, be incorporated into the
corporate risk register.

RECOMMENDATION
The Committee is RECOMMENDED to:
a) Note the contents of this report and its attachments;

b) Comment on any issues relating to the operating model and its
impact on the Council’s current and future performance;

c) Comment on the ongoing role of the Committee in engaging with the
delivery of the Operating Model, if agreed.

PETER CLARK
Chief Executive

Attachment 1: Draft Cabinet Report Implementing a new Operating Model for
Oxfordshire County Council

e Annex 1: Business Case
e Annex 2: Service and Community Impact Assessment

Contact Officer: Robin Rogers, Strategy Manager
August 2018

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



Division(s): All

CABINET - 18 SEPTEMBER 2018

IMPLEMENTING A NEW OPERATING MODEL FOR OXFORDSHIRE
COUNTY COUNCIL

Report by the Chief Executive

Introduction

1. This report sets out the work that has led to the development of a new
Operating Model for the Council and summarises the business case for
change. It seeks Cabinet approval to adopt the Operating Model as the basis
for whole-council transformation, ahead of a future decision on the detail of
investment in implementation.

2. In July 2018, the County Council adopted a new Corporate Plan for 2018-21.
This plan sets out the Council’s ambitious Thriving Communities vision and
explains how the Council will work to deliver its objectives. It recognises long-
term resource and demand pressures and identifies as a priority the need to
transform the way that the Council works to be more efficient and effective in
order to deliver the best outcomes for residents.

3. A specific commitment is made within the Corporate Plan to complete work on
a full review of the Council’s delivery model to be the fundamental basis for
future change.

4. During 2017, an in-depth analysis was undertaken into the Council’s
operations, developing a detailed evidence base on how staff spend their time
on a day to day basis.

5. Oxfordshire is a good council delivering good outcomes for residents,
demonstrated by positive external statutory inspections and by the Council’s
leadership role in place, infrastructure and economic planning. Areas that
need improvement are understood and actions are in place to bring about
change.

6. However, the analysis showed that the Council could deliver outcomes
significantly more efficiently through reducing duplication of effort, improving
systems and processes and improving the way that services work with each
other and with support functions. Overall, the Council could be more effective
in meeting its obligation to support staff in delivering outcomes for residents.

7. This insight led to the commissioning of a detailed design project which
through the first half of 2018 has identified opportunities for change and
improvement at an organisation-wide scale. The final product of this phase of
work is an Operating Model which sets out detailed proposals for how the

Page 15



10.

11.

12.

13.

organisation will work in the future. The Operating Model is attached within
the Business Case at Annex 1. These changes, if implemented, would provide
a detailed plan for delivering savings already required within the Medium Term
Financial Plan, with the potential for additional benefits to be released. As
significantly, they would provide a framework for delivering a council that is as
effective as possible in delivering better outcomes for residents.

Background and the drivers for change

Councils across England and Wales face the combined impact of rising
demand with severely constrained resources. As has been seen in the
financial crisis impacting Northamptonshire, responding to this scenario
requires prudent financial management and sustained difficult decision
making. Different but serious challenges are emerging in counties including
East Sussex and Lancashire. Having taken a pro-active approach to these
changes through eight years of annual real-term reductions in available
budgets, amounting to a 51% reduction in government funding over the
decade to 2020, Oxfordshire is in a better position than many councils in this
regard. Never-the-less without further change, the Council will continue to face
the challenge of long term financial sustainability.

The Council faces a choice between two approaches to establishing that
sustainability:

Firstly, the Council can continue to manage ongoing reductions in funding, and
rising demand through reductions in service budgets and individual efficiency
initiatives. Ultimately the Council would anticipate a service offering close to or
at the ‘floor’ of statutory obligations with major impact on residents and on the
Council’s ability to prioritise preventative activity. In any case, and particularly
because of the constraint on resources to manage increases in demand
through prevention, this may not be sufficient to ensure sustainability in the
long term.

Alternatively, the Council can take an overall look at its total approach to
delivering outcomes and ask whether a major change to its operation can
release resource to support services, offer policy choices and deliver financial
sustainability while at the same time improving the Council’s effectiveness in
terms of outcomes for residents.

By negatively impacting on outcomes for residents and with highly constrained
opportunities for investing in services, the first approach would not allow the
Council to meet the ambitions set out in the Thriving Communities vision. The
potential of this second approach is acknowledged in the Corporate Plan
which sets the requirement for a full review of the Council’s Operating Model.

The Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) agreed by Council in February 2016
first set out the need for large scale transformation due to the significant
impact of the redistribution of Revenue Support Grant and the further loss of
funding above the worst-case planning scenario applied. Savings of £15m
were built into the MTFP over the period 2017/18 to 2019/20. The phasing of

Page 16



14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

savings has been reprofiled since then, over the period 2019/20 to 2021/22
and now include a further £2.4m savings relating to ICT due to the decision,
made during and as part of the Service & Resource Planning process last
year, to defer elements of ICT redesign (specifically a proposed partnership
arrangement with Local Government Shared Services), in order to align with
delivery of the new Operating Model.

As a consequence, the Fit for the Future programme was established to
manage the Council’s organisation-wide transformation agenda. It aims to
deliver a council that is in the strongest possible position to meet the ambitions
of Thriving Communities, by re-focussing effort on resident outcomes,
delivering specific identified transformation savings, contributing to long term
financial sustainability and enabling political choice on service investment.

A first phase of enabling work, completed in summer 2017, has led to
significant improvements in the Council’s website and digital capacity and
direct improvements for customers accessing services.

Experience of planning and implementing these and broader change
demonstrated to the Council that the interconnections between services, and
between services and support functions, were so significant and complex that
major change would only be brought about at the pace required with a
comprehensive plan for the total organisation. Developing and delivering such
a plan would require significant investment and effort to bring about whole-
organisational change.

Activity analysis and the case for change

In order to develop a firm evidential basis for change, the Council
commissioned an activity analysis in summer 2017. With support from PwC,
all staff were asked to undertake a questionnaire exploring how they spent
their time on a day to day basis. The aim was to provide a scan of the
organisation, showing how the Council’s workforce apportions effort across 37
standard local government processes. To collect the data each member of
staff allocated the time they spent each week against these 37 processes.
Their responses were collated to develop a baseline for the Council and
enable an analysis of the extent of fragmentation and duplication of effort. This
output was benchmarked by comparison to other similar councils. Detailed
interviews were also undertaken to validate the information, understand the
issues identified and consider likely causes of the conclusions.

The main conclusions from this work were not that staff were not working hard
in the interests of residents, but that the Council as an organisation was not
fully meeting its obligations to support staff to get their jobs done. Specifically:

o Considerable effort was being put into support services when compared

with the comparator group, even though some of these services are
outsourced in Oxfordshire;

Page 17



19.

20.

21.

22.

o The Council could be utilising the information it holds about customers
more effectively and that a large proportion of staff effort is spent on
customer management processes, rather than direct service provision;

o Complex processes, technology and an immature digital offering may
be driving some of these characteristics with leadership teams
highlighting that confusing, non-standard processes and out of date IT
applications were a hindrance to their workforce;

o Significantly less effort as a proportion of overall staff time is being used
to deliver services, when compared to the comparator group®

o That the strategic direction of the Council could be clearer

Given the findings of the Activity Analysis a decision was taken by the Chief
Executive to undertake an ‘Operating Model assessment’. This enabled more
detailed analysis of the issues identified in the activity analysis and formed the
basis of second phase of Fit for the Future workstreams that were undertaken
between October 2017 and January 2018, with the support of PwC.

The most significant area of this work focused on a more detailed assessment
of the Council’s Operating Model. A series of cross cutting workshops were
held with many staff at different levels from across the Council. Detailed data
analysis was undertaken and qualitative sessions held with senior managers
for their assessment of current issues and future opportunities.

Additional work focused on understanding the Council’s digital and technology
environment and working with members and officers to consider future
opportunities for doing things differently through the use of technology and a
detailed analysis of our third party spend environment to consider
opportunities for savings through commissioned services was also
undertaken.

This work was drawn together into a Case for Change presented to the
Council in January 2018. Building on the evidence from the Activity Analysis,
the Case for Change concluded that:

o there was significant scope for efficiency in support services;

o that decision making is not consistently robustly informed by data and
insight;

o that the Council has not fully exploited the potential of digital
technology;

! The activity analysis acknowledges that this may be caused in part by the proportion of services out
sourced rather than being provided directly by the Council, as well as by staff performing tasks outside
of their core activity — but this notwithstanding, concluded that the effort expended on service delivery
was low in comparison to similar councils.

Page 18



23.

24,

25.

26.

o that there is duplication and fragmentation of staff effort across all areas
of the Council;

o and that the Council was not clear on how it will achieve its strategic
ambitions.

Opportunities for reviewing procurement and contract management for third
party spend, and for commercialisation, were also identified.

By addressing these challenges and opportunities, the Case for Change
identified significant scope for achieving cashable financial benefits without
negatively impacting on outcomes for residents. When finalised through
further analysis, it has been estimated that between £34m - £58m of annual
recurring savings could be delivered with a one-off investment in the region of
up to £18m. Officer assessment was that the changes in approach identified
also had the potential of delivering an organisation that was far more effective
overall.

While the Case for Change identified the considerable potential of pursuing
the opportunities and issues identified, addressing changes of this nature
would require substantial financial investment and long-term commitment of
the Council to prioritising a new approach. In order to prove the case before
investment and the full commitment of the Council’s resources, a further
phase of work was authorised.

The remainder of this report introduces the Council’s subsequent development
of a new Operating Model with associated enabled benefits in third party
spend and from commercialisation and an overall increase in effectiveness
with respect to resident outcomes. The Operating Model is set-out within a
broader Business Case document which builds on the case for change and
sets out in more detail the costs and benefits of delivery.

-
JuIy-Szeg:tgmber o Activity analysis
N
-
October 2017 * Operating Model Analysis
N
—
January 2018 * Case for Change completed
\_
e
February-April 2018 « High level design of Operating Model
—
-
May-July 2018 * Detailed design of Operating Model
x
—
September 2018 ¢ Member review of Operating Model
S

Fig 1. Timeline of Operating Model Development

Page 19



27.

The Business Case

The Business Case for delivering a new Operating Model is structured in six

sections:

1. Operating Model

A detailed description of
how the future council
will operate divided into
seven functioning
‘layers’

2. Enablers

The core enabling
functions that will allow
the Council to maximise
the benefits of the
Operating Model

3. The financial case

The financial benefits of
delivering the Operating
Model and the
associated costs

4. Service impact and
gap analysis

The outcome of work
with services to develop
understanding of the
issues and impact
associated with
implementation and
identify any gaps in
design

5. Construct and
implement

Outline proposals on the
practicalities of
implementation and an
outline phase plan

6. Risks

An assessment of risks
within the design and
implementation of the
Operating Model

28.

29.

30.

31.

The Business Case is set out in full at Annex 1, introduced with an Executive
Summary.

Understanding the Operating Model

An Operating Model is a detailed description of the way an organisation works.
The Council currently has an Operating Model. However, this is not one that
has ever been purposefully designed, formally articulated, considered as a
whole, or that is well understood or consistently applied. Rather, the current
Operating Model has developed piece-by-piece over the years of the Council’s
existence, adapting and changing overtime in response to specific pressures,
issues, technological and policy change and the absorption or loss of services.

Deliberately designing a new model of operations will allow the Council to
consider all of the way things are done and consider how they best fit together
in the interests of efficiency and effectiveness. Within the context of tight
financial management and sustained difficult decision making, this represents
a one-off opportunity to re-set the organisation’s basic framework for a
generation.

This is important in local government where councils seek to further the
interests of residents through a large number of diverse and interrelated
services — often working in partnership with other organisations. The way
these services work together, and with support and back-office functions, is
determined through a complex network of policy, processes, technology,

Page 20



32.

33.

34.

35.

36.

37.

38.

39.

governance and organisational structures underpinned by local and
organisational culture.

Without deliberate design, different areas of the Council can very easily end-
up undertaking similar activity in different ways for no sound-business reason
— with the potential for duplication, contradiction and conflict - ultimately
diminishing the impact of scarce resources.

This is not to say that it is appropriate for all services to be delivered in the
same way; one-size does not fit all and specialist services and complex needs
require different ways of working to maximise outcomes for residents, comply
with legislation and obtain best value for money. However, many tasks and
activities that sit-behind very specialist services are fundamentally common
across the organisation.

Understanding and carefully re-designing how the organisation operates in
this context offers the opportunity for major improvement and the return of
significant benefits to the organisation and community.

Setting the Operating Model in Context

The Operating Model in itself does not determine what the Council will do but
how it will work. It is therefore interrelated to the Corporate Plan and the wider
strategic policy and planning framework which set out the Council’s agreed
priorities and objectives and is integral to the delivery of that framework.

The decision-making, oversight, scrutiny, and representative roles of elected
councillors are central to the Council’s purpose and functions. The intention of
the Operating Model is to be the vehicle by which the Council can ensure that
it has the right capabilities, processes, structures, people, information,
technology, governance and culture to deliver agreed vision, policy and plans,
as set out by elected members of the Council.

The Operating Model, if agreed, will not supersede or direct any political,
commercial or service decision making — although it will inform and shape the
considerations made. For example, the Operating Model takes no position on
whether services should be delivered ‘in-house’ or ‘out-sourced’. It does
however set out the mechanisms and considerations which in the future will
support such decisions and sets out the processes, technology, information,
capacity and skills that will be needed in such determinations.

Equally, the Operating Model is intended to serve any political governance
structure and so is not dependent and does not pre-judge the outcomes of the
ongoing Governance Review.

Finally, the Operating Model should not be regarded as the final position that
will be implemented exactly as described at this stage. Rather, it is the
organisation’s best attempt to describe the future state of the council. It will
inevitably be amended through implementation and in the future through
experience and evidence and especially through feedback and engagement

Page 21



40.

41.

42.

43.

44.

from councillors, residents, partners and staff. Importantly however, such
change will be designed and controlled against this baseline.

Developing the Operating Model

The Operating Model has been developed in response to the Activity Analysis
in accordance with design principles set by the organisation and included
within the Case for Change (see Slide 12 of the Executive Summary of the
Business Case — Annex 1).

The detail of how the Council will work in the future is broken down into seven
inter-related ‘layers’ for the purposes of describing the model. The layers are
not a structure or a replacement for service departments or support teams;
rather they describe the common activity that when put together, will deliver
what is needed to deliver the best outcomes for residents. It then asks how
these activities are best delivered for optimum overall outcomes: what is
common, what is specialist, what needs to change and what will the overall
design look like. How these layers are then built into functioning teams with
associated systems and processes, is the substance of the ‘construct and
implement’ phase of the programme that would come next if Cabinet agree to
adopt the proposed model.

Each layer was worked on in detail by an officer working group led by a
director or pair of directors and supported by PwC. Layers were also tested
with services including with a cross-section of staff and managers. Councillors
were asked to contribute through a specific member briefing, through briefings
held in each Locality area and through feedback at the Audit and Governance
and Performance Scrutiny Committees held in March. Portfolio holders and
Political Group Leaders have also been engaged with the Operating Model as
it has emerged.

The approach to developing the proposed Operating Model is set out in
Section 2 of the Business Case document attached. The detailed design of
each Operating Model layer is set out in Section 3. Additional ‘enablers’, those
areas of the Council’s approach that need to change and develop to maximise
the impact of the Operating Model, are set out in Section 4.

In summary, the proposed model describes:

o Firstly, a council which prioritises investment in the community in
resilience building and community solutions to maximise the
opportunities for prevention and support communities and individuals to
help themselves (see the Pre-Front Door Layer)

o Secondly, a council with an integrated and streamlined approach to
customer management (see the Customer Management layer)

o Thirdly, a council with transparent and simplified assessment processes

with proportionate resource deployed according to the complexity and
risk of the assessment (see the Customer Assessment layer)

Page 22



45.

o Fourthly, a council with a consistent framework of processes for
identifying, obtaining and managing the products and service it requires
(see the Provision Cycle layer)

o Fifthly, a council with leading-edge professional support services to
ensure that staff across the Council are able to do their jobs with
maximum efficiency (see Enabling and Support Services layer)

o Sixthly, a council with a refreshed capacity to support members in
defining priority aims and vision and to manage, support and
communicate the delivery and monitoring of those aims (see Strategic
Capability layer)

o Finally, a council with a new function that will develop significant
insights from data and information, using technology, data science and
partnership approaches to support the Council in making evidence
based and data-led decisions (see Business Intelligence layer).

Taken together, implementing the new Operating Model will amount to a

complete reconsideration of how almost all functions are undertaken and how
they inter-relate, across the Council.

Page 23



Pre-Front Door

Individuals, communities, members, the council and partner organisations working together to build resilience,
develop strengths and create opportunities in local areas, which helps to reduce the need for council services.

Customer Management

The customer management layer contains all activities undertaken by the council that involve interaction with
customers and/or have an immediate impact on service delivery to customers.

Q
o
&£
@)
-
c
(o]
T
L

Customer Assessment

The customer assessment layer contains activities that are a key part of many customer interactions with the
council, with information being used to decide whether and how services are provided.

The Provision Cycle

The Provision Cycle layer provides the framework of processes and activities through which the Council
decides how best to meet an identified need or to achieve a specific outcome, including commissioning,
contracting and the management of third party suppliers.

Enabling and support
services

The Enabling & Support Services layer provides services that are optimised to meet the needs of internal
customers through process improvement, the use of enhanced digital systems and clear delineation of roles
and responsibilities.

Back Office

Strategic capability

The strategic capability layer provides the capabilities that the Council requires in order to define its
vision, high level strategy and objectives, as well as capabilities required to support, manage and review the
realisation of each of these.

Business intelligence

The business intelligence layer provide information, intelligence and insight to a range of customers including
businesses, partners and staff within the organisation.

Fig 2. Extract from Business Case — Operating Model Layers




The Financial Case

46.  Analysis by PwC tested the design of the Operating Model against the
evidence of the Activity Analysis and an assessment of the opportunities
within each service area for change and the release of benefits.

47.  Within the financial case, detail is given of the approach to calculating benefits
against each layer of the Operating Model.

48. Assessment of the costs of implementation has also been made to develop an
overall financial benefits profile for the life-time of the implementation
programme and an ultimate annual recurring financial benefit which can be
expected.

49. In summary, the overall estimated benefits profile associated with
implementation of the Operating Model is as follows — assuming that delivery
of benefits at the midpoint of the range of savings estimated (E34-£58m) is
achieved:

1815 | 1920 | 2001 | 2022 | 2223

Annual recurring benefit

. ) £0m £14m  £18m £10m  £4m
delivered in-year

Cumulative annual recurring

. £0m £14m £32m £42m £46m
benefit

50. The costs of delivery depend on choices made as to how the Operating
Model, if adopted, is implemented. For indicative purposes, one off
implementation costs (excluding recurring maintenance for technology and
potential redundancy costs, as explained in the financial implications section
below), are estimated as follows:

1619 | 19020 | 2021 | 2022 | 22123

In-year one off costs -£4m -£9m -£2m -£2m -£1m

51. The implications of this assessment and its relationship to resource planning
processes are set out in the Financial Implications section below.

Page 25



52.

53.

4.

55.

56.

S7.

58.

Construct and Implement

Section 7 of the Business Case deals with implementation of the Operating
Model.

Delivering an Operating Model is a major initiative and the scale of change
should not be underestimated. Taken overall, the Council will effectively be
rebuilt in full, with no service area left unchanged in terms of the way the
Council operates (as distinct from the outcomes services seek to deliver —
which are not the subject of the Operating Model). The change overall would
represent the largest transformation initiative that the authority has ever
undertaken.

Section 6 of the Business Case assesses the impact of change on services
and the extent to which the proposed changes are significant when compared
with existing practice. It concludes, overall, that while with careful
consideration and design service impact will be manageable and will not
negatively impact on service users, the difference from existing ways of
working is considerable.

Given these considerations, it is not possible or desirable to implement the
substantial changes required at one single point in time. An ordered construct
and implementation methodology will be required to manage the risks of
change and maximise the benefits of investment. The proposed method is to
deliver the organisation’s new approach through a series of four phased
‘releases’. While the full financial benefit will not be realised until the
completion of the programme, each release will give the opportunity to deliver
an element of benefits which, when assured, will be available for incorporation
into the MTFP.

Managing delivery through an iterative series of releases will allow for testing,
to respond to change and to learn as the programme progresses. It accepts
that not every project element will deliver perfectly first-time and allows for
flexibility to cope with that uncertainty. It will also allow for policy and
operational choices along the way with a developed understanding of the
impact of choice on delivery of financial benefits and improved services to
residents.

Professional programme management will be needed to manage the
interdependencies of different changes and the complexities and risks of
managing an organisation in transition between current ways of working and a
new model. Considerable resource will be required for communication,
engagement, re-training and change management and this has been
incorporated into the financial case.

It is projected that the implementation programme will take place over an initial
two to three-year period with benefits continuing to build through to 2022/23 as
new ways of working are embedded. Ongoing benefit can then continue be
incorporated into the MTFP.

Page 26



59.

60.

61.

62.

63.

64.

65.

To meet this ambitious timescale, the Council as a whole will need to prioritise
delivering the new Operating Model. However, the release-based approach
will allow services to manage the impact on competing priorities and day-to-
day service delivery by containing intense delivery periods within clearly set
out timescales. While detailed delivery of the Operating Model will be
predominantly undertaken by the Council’s own staff and directed by senior
leaders, overseen and scrutinised by elected members, the Council will also
need to supplement its existing resources, again to maintain pace and to
minimise impact on front-line service delivery. Such additional resource will
include strategic advice and programme management, technical and specialist
support (for example IT, digital and procurement) and support for change
management. It will also be necessary to ensure that sufficient capacity is
available to carefully manage and account for the delivery of benefits to
ensure that real benefits are delivered before incorporation into financial and
strategic plans.

The Construct and Implement section and the Financial Case assume that a
significant element of this additional resource is provided through an external
provider.

It is the purpose of this report to consider the Operating Model itself asking
Cabinet to consider its success in reflecting the specific Oxfordshire County
Council context and if satisfied, to agree to its adoption.

The detail of the investment required for implementation and a recommended
delivery mechanism — including the decision whether to appoint external
providers or to supplement internal resources — will be made through a further
report proposed to be considered by Cabinet in October 2018.

Implications for the partnership with Cherwell District Council
and for broader partnership working

The developing partnership with Cherwell District Council is based on the
initial sharing of the Chief Executive post with the potential in the future for
sharing senior management posts and the development of shared services.

The Operating Model is not directly related to the partnership. However,
opportunities created through the analysis now available and through the
implementation phase will mean that the development of the partnership will
be within a well-understood and adaptable framework. Overall, implementation
of a coherent Operating Model will allow support and front-line services to be
clear on both their requirements and capacities for any partnership working
subsequently considered— including with Cherwell but extending to the County
Council’s many existing and potential partners — and so may bring forward
more ambitious and deliverable business cases in the future.

Any such benefits and associated investment would be additional to the
business case developed so far.

Page 27



Options for Change

67. On consideration of the Business Case document, the options for change are
summarised in the chart below:
Description Commentary
1 | Adopt the proposed Recommended — the business case sets out the costs and benefits

Operating Model to
enable delivery of the
estimated range of
savings (£34m-£58m)
to the fullest extent
appropriate — agree to
the proposals as set out
and go forward to
identify options for
delivery

of the model, the potential for improvements to resident outcomes
and includes new ways to support prevention and minimise future
demand contributing to long-term financial sustainability. Delivering
the maximum benefits may create capacity to manage future
pressures and for policy and investment choices. It will also help
create a council that is agile and resilient to change with greater
capacity to manage risk and deliver agreed political objectives.

2 | Adopt the proposed Not recommended — the business case does not support the case
Operating Model to for not pursuing implementation to the furthest extent possible —
enable delivery of when taking into full account the requirements of service delivery:
required MTFP
savings only, i.e. o Firstly, the costs of delivery are not related to savings on a
£33m — agree to linear basis - significant enabling investment is required, for
implement the example in technology, to release the initial savings;
proposals only as far as e Secondly, there are no proposals within the business case
required to deliver the that are intended to lead to reduction in resident outcomes -
MTFP savings without a rather, the range of savings shown throughout provides the
requirement to deliver flexibility for professional judgement and policy choices to be
additional benefits made during the construction phase where the Council will

be able to assess the extent to which it thinks the Operating

Model can be applied without impacting on outcomes. Where

there is risk of impact, the model would not be applied, or

changed, or the risk mitigated in some other way whilst

maintaining overall benefits within the envelope identified.
Therefore, not taking the full possible savings obtainable, whilst
making the significant enabling investment, would represent poor
value for money.

3 | Do nothing — deliver Not recommended — this option is likely to have a negative impact

required MTFP savings
through identifying
service reductions and
individual efficiency
initiatives, including
those which have yet to
be identified.

on resident outcomes through service reductions and would mean
the Council having to take a similar approach to service cuts and staff
reductions as in previous years. Minimal proactive investment in
prevention and reducing demand will be possible, undermining any
strategy to cope with increased demand in the future and reducing
the ability of the Council to establish long-term financial sustainability.
Relying on individual efficiency initiatives increases risk in the MTFP
as these have not yet been fully identified. Continuing with individual
initiatives perpetuates the challenges of duplication and un-joined up
services and support functions. No benefit will be released to enable
policy and investment choices.

Page 28




Governance Arrangements

68.

69.

70.

71.

72.

In December 2017, a number of changes were made to the arrangements for
the governance of the transformation programme. These changes were
designed to:

o Strengthen overall governance and decision making, ensuring
coverage of all services, avoiding duplication or gaps, and addressing
concerns about the lack of a ‘design authority’;

o Promote clarity of arrangements for programme management; ensuring
compliance with programme management tools and the Council’s
programme management approach;

o Refresh the existing processes and templates for the programme
management office;

o Improve the tracking of benefit realisation (financial and non-financial
benefits).

o Provide a ‘whole council’ comprehensive approach as the previous

arrangements had only focused on some of the overall activity being
undertaken across the Council (the three ‘enabling workstreams in
phase 1 work).

A new Fit for the Future Board was established in January 2018, chaired by
the Chief Executive, with membership by strategic directors and other key
officers. This board now covers all transformational activity across the Council,
and will act as a ‘design authority’ to ensure that there is a single and joined
up authoritative approach to decision making on transformation. The corporate
Fit for the Future Board is fed and informed by directorate transformation
working groups.

A small team (the Programme Management Office) is now supporting the Fit
for the Future Board, ensuring oversight and accountability for all
transformation projects, and that there is compliance with organisational
processes and effective benefit realisation processes in place.

Processes and culture have embedded over the subsequent eight months and
the programme management arrangements are now well-embedded.
Development of the governance, support team and approach — including
culture, skills and approach across the organisation — continue to be reviewed
and the refresh of capacity required within the Programme Management Office
is itself an early deliverable of the proposed Operating Model.

Member oversight will continue to be led through a cabinet portfolio holder on
behalf of the cabinet. The Performance Scrutiny, and Audit and Governance,
Committees are also expected to continue their role of monitoring and
challenging performance, delivery, reporting and control as they have done
during the development of the programme so far. It is proposed to incorporate
wider councillor-engagement through the ‘Construct and Implement’ phases to
ensure that member insight and ideas and fully considered. Some Locality

Page 29



73.

74.

75.

76.

Meetings have, for example, already expressed an interest in continuing the
engagement that started during the design phase.

Delivery principles

The Operating Model is designed to be the optimum balance of acceptable
service impact and risk against level of benefit. There are no areas where
service outcomes are knowingly compromised by the implementation of the
Operating Model in and of itself.

In order to maintain this position, detailed and specific decisions will be
required throughout the Construct and Implement phase at different levels,
depending on scale. The overall design and key milestones will be overseen
by the Fit for the Future Board, as set out in the Governance section above,
and reported to Cabinet and council committees as required. The Cabinet will
formally consider and sign off each release phase, agreeing investment and
timescales. It is through this process that the detail of where within the
potential benefits scale the programme will deliver and regular reporting and
scrutiny will ensure that the right balance of programme impact and benefit
delivery is achieved.

In order to guide these detailed decisions that go beyond what is already set
out in the Operating Model, it is proposed to adopt a set of guiding principles
which will direct the overall balance of decisions and ensure overall that the
Cabinet’s intention is delivered in the detail of service decisions.

The proposed principles are as follows:

e That outcomes for residents will always be the priority consideration
through Operating Model construction;

e That the Council’s priority outcomes are set out in the Thriving Future
Vision and that these should form the basis of all organisational
aspirations, supported through the application of the agreed Organisational
Values;

e That a prudent approach to estimating benefits will be taken and that
additional investment or savings will not be incorporated into the MTFP
until real cashable benefits are on track and signed-off as ‘in-delivery’ by
the Fit for the Future board;

e That members will take the decision on the allocation of benefits released
in addition to those already required within the MTFP through the normal
service and resource planning process;

e That the Council will always consider any identified risks to service
outcomes and impact on service users and will ensure that before the
agreement of each phase-release plan, sufficient impact assessment has
been undertaken;

Page 30



e That the Council will minimise compulsory redundancies wherever possible
and prioritise retraining and redeployment.

Financial Implications

This report recommends that Cabinet agrees to the adoption of the Operating
Model set as out in the Business Case at Annex 1 as the basis of Council
transformation going forward.

The savings arising from the Business Case range from £34m at the low end
to £58m at the high end. The Business Case itself assumes the mid-point of

the savings is achieved at £46m. A review has been undertaken of the PwC

model to verify its logic and accuracy.

The existing MTFP already includes savings to be delivered through individual
service redesign, income generation measures and contract efficiencies. In
total theses amount to £15.6m These savings cannot be achieved in addition
to those set out in the Business Case. Savings of £17.4m are also included in
the existing MTFP to be delivered through corporate transformation, including
£2.4m relating to ICT.

Therefore, in implementing the Operating Model, achieving the low end of the
Business Case (at £34m) will allow for existing savings in the MTFP to be
achieved. The chart below sets this out.

£58mr
£58.0m
£2.4m savings hl?u;lnedss Ca.se
from ICT igh end savings
f33m|- l
£15.0m savings
required from
corproate £34.0m
transformation [PEREHESSEEE
£15.6m 'other' low end savings
transformation
savings
fOmL
Existing Estimated

Transformation Benefitsinthe
Committments Business Case
within MTFP

Page 31



81.

82.

83.

84.

85.

The Business Case sets out total implementation costs of up to £18m, of
which £4m is expected to be incurred in 2018/19. Further detail on the costs
and phasing will be brought to Cabinet in October. Costs which are expected
to be incurred in 2019/20 and beyond will need to be considered as part of the
Service & Resource Planning process and agreed by Council as part of the
2019/20 budget and MTFP to 2022/23, in February 2019. A decision on how
the costs expected to be incurred in 2018/19 will be met will be included in the
report to Cabinet in October 2018.

The Business Case includes assumptions on the timing of savings. Savings
are delivered in phases in line with implementation plan releases. The
Business Case does not assume full in-year savings will be delivered in the
year of each release, allowing realistic time for implementation to deliver
savings and providing an element of budgetary tolerance for delay. Dependent
on the implementation method to be agreed by Cabinet in October, further
consideration will need to be given to the phasing and value of the savings
and these will need to be included as part of the Service & Resource Planning
process for decision by Council in February 2019.

The challenge for the Council will be whether it can achieve the savings in full
and in the time scale that is set out in the Business Case. Depending on the
option agreed as part of this report and the method of implementation to be
agreed in October, a view will be taken on the level of savings in the Business
Case that can be achieved and in what timescale they can be achieved in.

Through the Operating Model transformation, the Business Case assumes a
reduction in overall staffing levels of between 600-890 current posts (before
taking into account opportunities for reinvesting in services — which could
reduce the net reduction). The Business Case does not however include any
potential costs arising from redundancies. Full redundancy costs are not
possible to calculate at this stage as the identification of an indicative number
of posts to be reduced does not directly relate to specific roles. Further, the
Council has a strong record of minimising redundancy as the establishment
has been reduced through retraining and redeployment. In addition, as the
implementation will be phased over two to three years, the Council will be able
to take advantage of an annual staff turnover of some 650 staff per annum.

As redundancy costs need to be accounted for in the year the decision is
made, it is probable that some costs will be incurred in 2018/19. Consideration
of how this will be funded will be set out in the Cabinet report in October,
alongside the implementation costs.

Page 32



86.

87.

88.

89.

90.

Staffing Implications

This report in-itself contains no direct implications for individual staff. However,
if implemented, the subsequent delivery programme will clearly have
substantial impact for all staff in the way they work. The report shows how
cashable benefits may create policy and investment choices for councillors in
addition to meeting existing savings commitments. What choices are made —
including to reinvest potential savings in services - and the ongoing-overall
financial environment, will determine the extent to which net-employment will
be affected. In the scenario where benefits are delivered to the fullest extent,
choices could include investing in creation of new roles, or to posts being
rebalanced across the organisation.

If the Operating Model is applied in full, given the change both in the way
resources are applied overall — with an assumed shift of resources towards
service delivery — and how each individual job role will be undertaken, it is
very likely that a significant number of roles will be changed to the extent that
redundancy situations are created. Some compulsory redundancies may be
required.

The Council’s policy on redundancy is, and will continue to be, to avoid
redundancies wherever possible. Throughout implementation, as in design,
staff and unions will be consulted and the change processes managed in
accordance with our agreed policies. The Council currently has processes to
actively look for opportunities to redeploy staff who are at risk of redundancy.
Should implementation go ahead these processes will be reviewed to ensure it
Is able to support the potential increased numbers of staff needing to be
redeployed. £3m has been incorporated into the financial case to support the
management of the change process.

The attached Service and Community Impact Assessment sets out the
mitigating actions that will be taken to ensure that due regard is given through
implementation to the impact of change on all individuals including how
consideration will be given to potential differential impact on those with
protected characteristics.

It is worth stating that in all scenarios, delivering the substantial savings
already set out in the MTFP are likely to have a significant staffing impact.
Delivering the full savings within the overall-management of the TOM delivery
programme will give the maximum opportunity for retraining and redeployment
where required.

Page 33



91.

92.

93.

94.

95.

Equalities Implications

The Operating Model as set out describes at a high level the design of a new
approach for overall council operations. In itself, this decision will not have a
direct impact on residents or staff. However, the detailed implications and
outputs of the Construct and Implement phase will impact on these groups.

Detailed impact assessment will need to be undertaken throughout the
Construct and Implement phases as each new service area is considered.
High level potential impact, initial mitigating activity undertaken through design
and plans for further assessment throughout implementation are set out in the
attached Service and Community Impact Assessment (see Annex 2).

Member Engagement ahead of decision making

Ahead of the Cabinet meeting planned to consider this report on 18
September 2018, there will have been a number of opportunities for all
Councillors to formally and informally review the Operating Model and to
engage with senior officers — in addition to opportunities throughout the
development of the approach, as set out in the Developing the Operating
Model section above. These are as follows:

4 Sept | All Member Briefing

6 Sept Performance Scrutiny Committee

6 Sept | Audit & Governance Committee

11 Sept | Full Council — thematic discussion on the Operating Model

It is anticipated that views from these forums will be brought to Cabinet.
This report and the associated documents will have been available to all

members from late August with the publication of Performance Scrutiny and
Audit & Governance committee papers.

Page 34



RECOMMENDATION
96. The CABINET is RECOMMENDED to:
a) Endorse the proposed Operating Model set out in the Business
Case in Annex 1 as the basis of whole council transformation
planning;
b) Agree to Option 1 (see para. 67), to enable delivery of the
estimated range of savings (E34m-£58m) to the fullest extent

appropriate;

C) Agree the delivery principles set out in paragraph 76 as the basis
for future detailed decision making;

d) Direct the Chief Executive to bring a costed proposal for
implementation to Cabinet in October 2018.
PETER CLARK
Chief Executive
Annex 1: Business Case

Annex 2: Service and Community Impact Assessment

Contact Officer: Robin Rogers, Strategy Manager
August 2018

Page 35



This page is intentionally left blank



2259 OXFORDSHIRE
5% COUNTY COUNCIL

Business case
Oxfordshire County Council

Target operating model

August 2018

FINAL




g¢ abed

Contents

1. Executive summary 3-29

2. Context & approach 30-41

3. Target operating model 42 -197
4. Enablers 198 - 256
5. Revised financial case 257 - 269
6. Service impact & gap analysis 270-304
7. Construct & Implement 305-323
8. Risks 324 -329
9. Next steps 330-332

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case




1. Executive summary




o abed

ol

%Y COUNTY COUNCIL

Foreword from the Chief Executive...

Foreword
During the summer of 2017, we conducted an in depth assessment of our strategy and the way that we work as an organisation. The assessment
found that while there was nothing about the Council that was fundamentally broken, there was considerable room for improvement.

To some extent, this confirmed what | suspect many of us already thought. While we had been successful in taking steps to deal with reductionsin
public spending at a national level, and had delivered tangible improvements in some key service areas, there was a sense in which we knew that
more fundamental change was required.

The results of the assessment provided direct evidence of this. It showed that we were spending a much higher level of effort on managing
customers, data entry and recording and carrying out support activities than we were on delivering services. In addition, the assessment
highlighted issues concerning our processes, use of technology and information. While none of these issues had the potential to undermine the
organisation in the short term, we recognised that if we didn’t listen to this evidence, and respond in the right way, we would be storing up
problems for the Council in the future.

Consequently, we have spent the past six months carrying out a detailed redesign of our operating model. This has comprised working through all
the major functions of the County Council systematically, establishing how we would like each one to work in the future, the processes that will
need to be adopted, what this will require in terms of technology and what it will all mean for our people.

This has been one of the most ambitious pieces of work we have ever undertaken. It has touched almost every aspect of the way the Council
operates and really has challenged us to think much more creatively about the kind of organisation we want to be. | am very pleased that so many
Councillors and members of staff were able to contribute to the work — through the numerous design sessions, service impact testing workshops
and briefings that have been delivered since January.

This document is the culmination of the work that has been carried out. It sets out an exciting vision of the future, and a roadmap for transforming
the whole Council over the next two years. | firmly believe that this is the right course to take, and that by taking action now we can ensure we
achieve the high standards we set for ourselves for many years to come. The new operating model will be key to achieving our strategic vision:
Thriving communities for everyone in Oxfordshire.

As | have said previously, implementing the changes described in this document will not be straightforward. We will need to be more disciplined
and more focussed than at times in the past, ensuring capacity to transform while continuing usual business. However, we must take confidence
from what has been achieved over the past six months. We have proven we have the ideas and the will to imagine a more sustainable future. We
now need to make sure we deliver on this potential and create the organisation that our residents, communities, Members and staff deserve.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



#3%) COUNTY COUNCIL

Local government continues to face significant uncertainty especially in
terms of decreased funding and increasing demand for its services...

Context

Local government continues to face an unprecedented set of challenges. Further reductions in central government funding are creating a 20-
30% funding gap, and there is increasing demand for existing and new services. Increasing budgetary pressures and service demand mean that
councils have to do more with less.

PwC’s Local State We're In 2018 review, an annual survey that consults local authority CEOs and Leaders, identified the following key themes
which have begun to emerge;

Fear of failure is rising: Almost a third of councils now feel that the ‘cliff edge’ is imminent and are not confident of their ability to
deliver next year.

Confidence in the financial sustainability of the sector is reducing: When it comes to considering the sector as a whole, almost
three quarters (74%) of respondents think that some local authorities will get into serious financial crisis in the next year.

Councils are at the heart of public service reform: As councils shift their thinking towards driving public service reform across
their place, six out of ten respondents agree that councils should be more responsible for facilitating outcomes rather than
delivering services.

Good growth continues to climb the agenda: Place based growth has also risen up the agenda with councils’ priorities for growth
largely reflecting those of the public with skills, housing and transport topping the agenda. However, significant challenges remain
in each of these areas, such as lack of investment in infrastructure, the impact of Brexit, lack of affordable or suitable housing and
lack of influence over skills.

Significant capacity and capability gaps remain: Councils need to build organisational resilience and in particular develop new
skills and commercial acumen in order to be effective. Areas in particular need of development are supply chain management,
contract management, talent management, cyber security and data analytics. Rising market pressures in key sectors such as social
care require the right capability, capacity and agility to respond to provider challenges and unpredictable circumstances.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



2t obed

B OXFORDSHIRE
Yy COUNTY COUNCIL

Oxfordshire County Council (OCC) is in a better position than many Councils
but still has to make changes in order to solve the challenges they face...

Background

While the Council’s current financial pressures do not constitute an immediate need for change as experienced by other local authorities, there is a
recognition amongst the County Leadership Team (CLT) that OCC faces a number of challenges which the Council must be forward thinking in
addressing in order to achieve its strategic ambition of creating, and maintaining, “Thriving communities for everyone in Oxfordshire”.

The challenges facing OCC

Requirement to be fit for the future

The local government landscape is changing

Closer collaboration with the wider public
sector

Improving efficiency of current services

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case

OCC recognises the need to be fit for the future. It understands it needs to
improve its overall efficiency and effectiveness, while recognising, and
building on, those areas of good performance (e.g. Children’s Services
Ofsted report).

Local councils are experiencing a period of unprecedented pressure.
Demand for services is rising and customer expectations are changing. For
OCC this is manifesting itself in increasing demand for social care as well as
additional pressures across other core service areas.

At the same time, OCC is working closely with local district councils,
specifically Cherwell District Council, and other public sector partners such
as the NHS to identify opportunities for closer collaboration across the
whole system.

The Council understands that having the right people with the right skills
to perform the right activity at the right time will be crucial to achieving its
vision to be fit for the future.




oy abed

28 OXFORDSHIRE
&Y COUNTY COUNCIL

Specifically OCC faces cumulative budgetary pressures of £57.8m to 2021/22
driven by demographic changes, legislative changes and existing savings
initiatives that are not expected to be delivered...

Scale of the financial challenge

In the most recent Service & Resource Planning 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 Total
2018/19 to 2021/22 report Council officers identified £m £m £m £m £m

that over the next four years the Council faces

lative budeet £ £57.8m. dri Pressures,
cumulative budgetary pressures of £>7.om, driven Improvements &  £46.223m £7.318m £4.547m (£0.330m) £57.758m
by: Investments

* Demographic pressures, including increasing Directorate

numbers of Children requiring placements and an Savings (£16.790m) (£7.730m) (£0.734m) (£0.325m) (£25.579m)
increase in the number of children with disabilities
* Legislative pressures, including those continuing CRlpeE (£29.433m) £10.412m £0.387m (£4.021m) (£22.655m)
. . . Measures
to arise as a result of the implementation of the
National Living Wage ;
;;i?;;zrmat'm £0.000m (£10.000m)  (£4.200m) (£3.200m)  (£17.400m)

* Existing savings initiatives that are not expected to

be achieved, including those related to services Net Pressure /
provided or commissioned for older people and (Saving) £0.000m £0.000m £0.000m (£7.876m) (£7.876m)
people with learning disabilities

In response to these pressures, the Council has OCC - Overall Financial Position 2018/22 (as at August 2018)

identified a number savings initiatives (a combination
of corporate measures, MTFP savings and
Transformation Savings) the successful delivery of
which will be critical to ensuring it is able to meet the
challenges it faces and succeed in delivering against
its strategic ambition.

Central to ensuring that OCC is able to respond to the financial challenges it faces, and for
other pressures that are likely to develop in the future, is the need for the Council to
develop an operating model that is efficient and effective, and facilitates a transformation
in the way in which it delivers, or commissions, services for residents.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



#9%) COUNTY COUNCIL
The Council also has a clear strategic ambition and vision for what type of

12852 O X F O R DS H I R E. o

local authority it wants to be and what it wants to achieve for residents...

vt abed

Strategic vision

a
v

o
v

i3]

Thriving communities

We help people live safe, healthy lives
and play an active part in their
community.

We provide services that enhance the
quality of life in our communities, and
protect the local environment.

“Thriving communities for everyone in Oxfordshire”

To achieve our vision, we will listen to residents so we can continuously improve our services and provide value for money.

Our priorities
(X )

w

Thriving people

We strive to give every child a good start in
life, and protect everyone from abuse and

neglect.

We enable older and disabled people to live
independently and care for those in greatest

need.

=

(=
Thriving economy

We support a thriving local economy
by improving transport links to create
jobs and homes for the future.

With this strategic ambition in mind, the Council has already begun to think about how its business model will need to change:

“More transactions will be digital. We will dispose of

“We will increasingly involve people
who use services and their families to
design, buy and evaluate the quality

“We will continue to move
away from the traditional
top-down service design
and delivery model”

properties we do not need or generate an income
from them. We will also work with partners and
central government to join up local services”

of those services”

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case




Gy abed

o

\‘“ ﬂ

.Y COUNTY COUNCIL

2 OXFORDSHIRE puss—

To meet its challenges and deliver its ambitious vision, the case for change
completed in January 2018 identified that the Council could achieve the
following benefits through operating differently...

Benefits

The case for change identified that, through addressing these
opportunities, OCC could achieve between £33m - £58m of saving
made up of the following:

It was estimated that OCC
could achieve a minimum
£21m of benefit, but that
Savings there was the potential to

achieve more than this (up to
Quick wins £33m)

Operating model
FTE transformation

It was estimated OCC could
achieve at least £8m of
benefit, but there was the
potential to go achieve more
than this (up to £17m)

Strategic sourcing
& process
improvements

3 party
Spend

It was estimated OCC could
achieve at least £4m of
benefit, but there was the
potential to achieve more
than this (up to £8m)

Income Commercialisation

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case

Alongside the financial benefits shown opposite the case for change
also identified that by addressing these opportunities OCC could
achieve the following outcomes:

“Are enabled to resolve their own issues. Their
experience of the Council will be on a level with
what they experience in other parts of their lives
and will live up to their expectations.”

Customers

Services “The Council’s critical services will better able to
cope with future pressures and less likely to fail.”

Staff “Staff will feel empowered to help the Council
deliver its ambitions.”

Communities  “The transformation of the Council’s operating
model will exploit the local advantages
Oxfordshire possesses.”

This would give the Council some choices:

“Reinvest in alternative delivery
models to achieve long term
sustainability”

+ £

“Release cash to deal with
existing financial pressures”

sk ---:_‘_'E_.__> :1':5:1}1;;‘”"_‘_‘“: i



,:.,,(4 OXFORDSHIRE
#0% COUNTY COUNCIL

Following on from the case for change the Council began the design of a
Target Operating Model (TOM)...

Approach to designing the TOM

An operating model is a representation of how the Council uses its customer offerings, business capabilities and corporate structure to deliver
the best possible outcomes for its residents in keeping with its vision. A Target Operating Model, purposefully developed and designed, will
provide the council with a blueprint against which to build an organisation that is capable of providing all of the products and services that its
customers require in a more efficient and effective way.

The design of the Council’s target operating model started in February 2018 and concluded in July 2018. The work took place across two phases:

U : . . :
8 High level design phase Detailed design phase
i The high level design phase focused on... The detailed design phase focused on...
+ Defining the key inputs to the Council’s target operating model * Reviewing the emerging design blueprints against the outputs
including customer personas, strategic parameters and the from the engagement with staff and service areas.
needs and characteristics of each of the nine localities within
Oxfordshire. * Designing, to an increased level of detail, the operating model
components needed to enable the successful delivery of the in-
* Designing, at a high level, the operating model components scope business capabilities (focusing on how they will operate in
needed to enable the successful delivery of the in-scope the future).

business capabilities.
* Describing, in further detail, the outcomes, experience and

* Describing the benefits, outcomes and experience of the in- benefits of the new design for the in-scope business capabilities.

scope business capabilities.
* Testing with staff and services to further test and refine the

* Testing the emerging design with a range of council staff detailed design blueprint.
involved in the current delivery of the in-scope business
capabilities as well as with service areas to understand the * Planning out the approach the Council will need to take in order
implications of the emerging design. to implement the detailed design.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



/v obed

wIrs

€8 OXFORDSHIRE
%/ COUNTY COUNCIL

The design of the Council’s TOM was informed by the following key inputs...

Key inputs

It is critical that the Council’s TOM is informed by an understanding of its customers, its strategic vision and the needs and characteristics of the

physical place it serves.

As part of the design of the TOM, consideration has been given to each of these key inputs:

6~

Strategy

The Council has a clear strategic ambition
and vision for the type of local authority
that it wants to be, as set out in the
2018-2021 Corporate Plan.

From this a set of strategic parameters
have been developed that have been
used throughout the design process to
test and challenge each and every
emerging design concept in order to
ensure that it aligns with the Council’s
ambition and vision.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case

Place

Consideration has also been given to the
needs and characteristics of Oxfordshire
as a place and the various localities
within Oxfordshire.

The Council is clear in its ambition to
become more of a place based authority,
which is responsive to the needs and
characteristics of local communities. This
has led to a number of key decisions /
choices that have been focused on as
part of the design of the TOM.

[ N )
() 4
Customer

‘Customer’ is used as an overarching term
to refer to any person or group of people
that is part of the Council or interacts with
itin some way.

It is recognised that there is a diverse
range of customers with many different
needs and circumstances. In order to
inform the design process, broad customer
groups were identified and used to test,
challenge and amend the design of each
layer of the operating model and ensure
that it remains customer focused.

Throughout the construct and
implementation phase, significant further
customer analysis and engagement across
the full range of county council customers
and service users will be required.



gy abed

As well as the following overarching design principles...

Overarching TOM design principles

Customer offering

Processes

Technology

2

Information

e

Organisational
structure

(YY)
L/ N\

People capabilities

Performance
Management

Residents are experts in their own lives - they are the best to identify outcomes, inform service design and help
themselves within their community.

We will hold a ‘single record’ for each of our customers making it easier for us to understand our communities,
manage demand and offer support/ intervention based on need.

Councillors and staff help people and communities to support themselves

We will design processes around the user and their experience, enabling self-service at every opportunity.
We will be transparent about the ways in which we manage risk.
There is a clear and open approach to how we manage and scrutinise what we do, including through councillors

Systems, applications and infrastructure will be designed around business need, with a consistent approach to
functional requirements.
We will ensure that technology is always an enabler, not a hindrance.

Our decisions will be informed by sound business intelligence and data analytics
We understand community needs and priorities, and gather intelligence from councillors

We will provide transparency, clarity and consistency on roles and expectations for councillors and staff across the
organisation

Accountability will sit at the most appropriate structural and community level

We will consolidate strategic and common functions with a clear purpose, maintaining flexibility in local delivery

We will enable all our people to use their creativity to develop innovative solutions to the challenges we face.
Councillors act as community leaders.

We will measure the right things, through a consistent performance management framework, from corporate
outcomes to individual performance.
There is effective scrutiny and challenge from councillors.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case




61 abed

8% OXFORDSHIRE

wIrs

%Y COUNTY COUNCIL

At the start of the process the Council confirmed that the Target Operating
Model would be comprised of different layers...

OCC TOM Layers

The Council has used cross-cutting ‘layers’ to design a Target Operating Model which maximises opportunities across the whole organisation,
builds greater consistency and avoids fragmented silo thinking based around traditional service-based directorates. These layers are defined by
their functional purpose for the organisation, cutting horizontally across services, as follows:

Back Office

Pre-Front Door

Individuals, communities, members, the council and partner organisations working together to build resilience,
develop strengths and create opportunities in local areas, which helps to reduce the need for council services.

Customer Management

The customer management layer contains all activities undertaken by the council that involve interaction with
customers and/or have an immediate impact on service delivery to customers.

Customer Assessment

The customer assessment layer contains activities that are a key part of many customer interactions with the
council, with information being used to decide whether and how services are provided.

The Provision Cycle

The Provision Cycle layer provides the framework of processes and activities through which the Council
decides how best to meet an identified need or to achieve a specific outcome, including commissioning,
contracting and the management of third party suppliers.

Enabling and support
services

The Enabling & Support Services layer provides services that are optimised to meet the needs of internal
customers through process improvement, the use of enhanced digital systems and clear delineation of roles
and responsibilities.

Strategic capability

The strategic capability layer provides the capabilities that the Council requires in order to define its
vision, high level strategy and objectives, as well as capabilities required to support, manage and review the
realisation of each of these.

Business intelligence

The business intelligence layer provide information, intelligence and insight to a range of customers including
businesses, partners and staff within the organisation.

In addition, Service Delivery relates to the actual provision of frontline services to customers. This has not been designed as an individual layer of
the TOM, but the rest of the layers will involve change across all operational service areas to better enable and improve service delivery.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case




8% OXFORDSHIRE

wIrs

%Y COUNTY COUNCIL

What will the Front Office look like in the future...

Key characteristics of the Front Office

Digital by design Enhanced Customer Enabling service areas
PY function and communities
N 3
«Q
9]
ol
o Development and promotion of channel An enhanced Customer function with the Links with the Pre-Front Door will help
shift opportunities across all service right mix of resources and service specialisms people to find solutions and create
areas, with a particular focus on digital to effectively signpost, filter, resolve queries opportunities in their local communities.
and self-service. This will be enabled by a at first contact or route to operational service Operational service areas will be able to
simple digital customer portal, areas. This supports a consistent Front Door focus on more complex customers and
integrated systems and an assisted across the whole council to assist residents, service delivery, supported by streamlined
digital offer. Members and staff. processes and improved technology.

How will the functional model for the Front Office work...

The future ‘front office’ will have streamlined channels of contact and consistent ways of working so that residents, Members, partners and
businesses can interact with the council easily and effectively. Customer management and assessment activities will be consolidated wherever
possible, with close collaboration between the Customer function and operational service areas to ensure the needs of customers are being
met appropriately. Technology, systems and processes will be integrated between the front office and operational services, so that services
can be delivered in the right way, staff can focus their efforts where they are most needed, and there is a seamless customer experience. By

facilitating community action through the Pre-Front Door, the council will also promote more sustainable approaches to supporting and
enabling Oxfordshire residents over the longer term.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



TG obed

2 OXFORDSHIRE
Y COUNTY COUNCIL

How will the Front Office work...

= Functional model for the Front Office

The model below sets out how the key functions for the Customer Management and Assessment layers, linking into the Pre-Front Door, work

together to form the Front Office for the council.

o8
{i‘r Partners Communities VCs Carers Individuals Businesses ﬁ
\/ - el

L4 ' v
- Signposting and intelligent outbound information
()]
£ Requests for service and information
8
g
§ Low
: A
g _E Specialist resource
% | for initial
3 z screening or direct

-E : - contact with
» = = Assisted digital service areas
£ 3 Autnmat_ed decision where appropriate
£ ° making and Rules-based screening
a E provision of services o doted and data collection for
g =3 assessments
2 |3 plex assessments
@

S 1
£ '{\?‘/ Quality assurance, Officer follow-up, Referred complex :;gﬂl;z:‘:ﬂ;ﬁ
2 support and validation decision making and service assessments e
> High approvals and approvals PP

Low Level of complexity of customer need High

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case

The Pre-Front Door will involve
the council working with a range
of external stakeholders to grow
resilience and opportunities in
communities. By strengthening
support within communities and
enhancing the role of
prevention, this will improve
resident outcomes overall and
reduce the call on council
services, which can then focus
on the most complex needs.

Where customers do need to
contact the council. the
functional model highlights how
the approach to customer
interactions and the level of
manual intervention will vary
according to the level of
complexity of customer need.
Simple interactions will require
less manual intervention
through the use of automation
and technology, with access to
the appropriate specialisms for
more complexinteractions.



¢85 OXFORDSHIRE
s/ COUNTY COUNCIL

What will the Back Office look like in the future...

Key characteristics of the Back Office

Consistent across Enabling Powered by technology
the whole Council

a ‘e
1111 a8

o O

&

) The Back Office will provide internal The Back Office will deliver a The Back Office will be powered by

Ul and external customers with a set of responsive and high quality service to technology. This will provide customers

N consistent business capabilities that are customers. The menu of products and with easy access to the tools,
delivered on a ‘whole council basis’. services delivered by the Back Office information and insight they need in
Existing silos will be broken down and capabilities will be developed in order to deliver against the Council’s

Back Office capabilities will be partnership with customers and will be strategic objectives.
consolidated and standardised where regularly reviewed to drive a cycle of
appropriate. continuous improvement.

How will the functional model for the Back Office work...

The future Back Office will have standardised and consistent processes that are delivered on a whole Council basis so that the siloed,
fragmented and duplicative ways of working identified in the case for change are eliminated. Back Office capabilities will be consolidated
wherever appropriate, with close collaboration between Back Office capabilities and service areas in order to ensure that the needs and
wants of service areas are being managed and met. Technology, systems and processes will be streamlined and consideration will be given
to the most appropriate channel through which to deliver Back Office capabilities (Self-service; dedicated business partners supporting
activities for service areas; specialist corporate hub leading activities which can take place on a whole council basis).

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



oG abed

2 OXFORDSHIRE
Y COUNTY COUNCIL

How will the Back Office work...

= Functional model for the Back Office

The model below sets out how the key functional elements of the Provision Cycle, Enabling & Support Services, the strategic capability and
business intelligence combine together to form the Back Office for the council.

E Directorates / Service areas I * The functional model for the
I o Back Office will be based on
- . the principle of self service and
Low Level of complexity High

self sufficiency wherever

appropriate. This will be driven
through investment in
technology and the use of
intelligent outbound
information.

A Intelligent outbound information

Requests for information, support and advice
Where customers do need

h 1

1

| !

I 1

1 1

! |

1 1

1

! !

I 1

I 1

! |

1 1

1

! !

I 1

I 1

| |

1 1

: i

Information, advice, guidance |:> Specialist Back i specialist support for a Back !
o . I . .

Office functions 1 Office process, a business |

1 1

| |

1 1

I 1

! |

H 1

1

! !

I 1

I 1

! |

1 1

1

! !

I 1

I 1

! |

1 1

1

! !

! |

- R

located preferred delivery channel

Requests and transactions E> centrally or calling on corporate resources
within service .
where needed (e.g. Business
Business partnering areas

Administration support).
Automated Specialist input and
. . Rules based pec .I inpu
information . advice to Back ..
. transactions . X Specialist
and services Office transactions.

Level of manual intervention

Where requirements are more
complex, specialist Back Office
teams will be used (either
located as a corporate hub or,
where appropriate, with
service areas).

delivery of Back
Office

<

Quality transactions.
assurance and

High validation PP

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



G abed

22 OXFORDSHIRE
s/ COUNTY COUNCIL

The following key enablers will be required to deliver the Target Operating
Model and to maximise the benefits that the Council can achieve...

Key enablers required for the TOM
Enablers describe the supporting changes needed to create the right conditions for the target operating model to be implemented and

sustained, maximising the benefits that the Council could achieve through it. They can be grouped into a number of categories.

The following enablers have been described as part of the layer by layer run through of the TOM (slides 42 — 197) with further information
available as part of the appendices to this business case.

Customer Performance

Organisation

Offering Management

The following enablers are described at an organisational level in a dedicated section of the business case. Where relevant, specific enabler
requirements per layer are also highlighted in the TOM design, as well as the appendices.

People

Processes rens
Capabilities

Technology Information

Integrated
Governance Culture Business

Role of the
manager

Centre (IBC)

Each enabler has been described using the following structure:

Where are we today? How will this change in the TOM? What will this look like in practice?
What is the current state assessment of the How will the enabler be different in the What will this change actually look like in
council in regard to this enabler (from the future TOM? the future TOM?

Case for Change)?

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



GG abed

22 OXFORDSHIRE
Y COUNTY COUNCIL

The analysis undertaken as part of the design of the TOM has validated the
benefits identified in the case for change...

Benefit categories

It is estimated OCC could achieve c.£34m - £58m of on-going benefits over the next five years through 3 key areas.

The design of the TOM
Through implementing the TOM it is estimated that the Council validates the benefits
could deliver between c.£22m - £33m of benefits. The level of outlined in the initial
1 FTE Operating model capacity released will depend on the Council’s ambition and the case for change,
savings transformation choices made through construct and implement, but a range of estimating that OCC
€.603 — 885 FTE through a whole council redesign should be could achieve c. £22m
achievable. - £33m of potential
benefits.
The Operating Model
A wholesale review of procurement and contracts should yield Assessment estimated
significant benefits for the Council. Based on experience elsewhere that OCC could
31 Strategic sourcing and the work undertaken through the 3 party spend review and achieve c.£8m - £17m
party } . o . ) . .
2 spend & process Strategic Sourcing Plans (SSPs), it is estimated the Council could of potential benefits.
improvements achieve at least £8m of benefit on its third party spend (This is in The SSPs developed in
addition to the FTE savings identified as part of the Provision Cycle this phase start to
layer of the operating model). validate this through 3
specific examples*.
Based on experience elsewhere, there are a number of The Operating Model
opportunities for non-people related initiatives to drive additional Assessment estimated
3 Income Commercialisation income from the Council’s services. This could include service cost that OCC could
recovery, trading or commercialisation opportunities, or a further achieve c.£4m - £8m
review of fees and charges. of potential benefits.

* SSPs have been produced for Adult’s residential & nursing homes, Children’s residential care and Children’s fostering. These support a number of existing initiatives within directorates related to these areas identified within the Medium Term Financial Plan and
further work is being undertaken to progress these.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case




9G abed

52 O X F O R D'S H I R E. s

% COUNTY COUNCIL

Pulling the revised benefits and costs together provides the Council with the
following cost - benefit profile over the next five years...

Cost - benefit profile

Through implementing the TOM it is estimated that Council will
deliver between £34m and £58m of on-going benefits over the
next five years.

This cost-benefit profile aligns with the proposed
implementation plan outlined in section 7 of this business case.
This assumes that FTE benefits through operating model
transformation will begin to be realised on the 1%t of the month
following each ‘release’ (please refer to section 7 for an
explanation of what a release is and how this links to OCC’s
services and operating model layers).

As outlined previously, the estimated required investment is
made up of one-off costs associated with external
implementation support, people costs and technology. The
Council may be able to capitalise a proportion of these.

These investments will enable the Council to construct and
implement its TOM, as well as to implement the new ways of
working and technologies that are required to deliver the savings
identified in this revised case for change.

The graph to the right shows the benefit off the baseline over a
five year period, using the mid-point benefit scenario (c.£46m).

Cost assumptions
* A summary of the assumptions that underpin this cost-benefit profile

can be found at slides 269 — 270 of Section 5: Revised Financial Case.
*  For the avoidance of doubt redundancy costs have been excluded from
the cost estimate calculation.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case

w w b b U
o U1 O 1 O

N
o

Benefit (£ millions)
= N
(9] (9]

=
o

18/19 19/20 20/21 21/22 22/23

Financial year
m Annual benefit e Cumulative annual benefit

o wun

Annual recurring benefit

. . £0m £14m £18m £10m £4m
delivered in year

Cumulative annual recurring

. £0m £14m £32m £42m £46m
benefit

The following one off costs will be incurred over the period to
implement the TOM.

In-year one off costs** -£4m -£9m -£2m -£2m -£1m

*For simplicity, all numbers in this table are rounded to the nearest whole number. The totals have
been calculated before rounding for accuracy.
** The costs shown in this table exclude recurring maintenance costs for technology.



)G abed

52 O X F O R D'S H I R E. s

% COUNTY COUNCIL

The revised financial case will support the Council with responding to its
budgetary pressures...

= Linking the revised financial case to the Council’s current financial plan

The Council has identified that over the next four years it faces cumulative pressures, improvements and investments of £57.8m.

The revised financial case, set out in Section 5 of this document, builds on the existing transformation activities the Council has underway,
whilst recognising that there is some overlap with existing Directorate Savings, to provides a clear roadmap for how the Council can achieve the
minimum level of benefit required (£34m) to meet its existing budgetary pressures (as set out on slide 7).

£40.0 Thgminimumben.efitcasescenfarioset ettt
out in the TOM business case delivers the i High business case benefit scenario - £58m i
£30.0 minimum level of benefit required for ! :
the Council to meet existing budgetary ! !
£20.0 pressures. i i
I | L 1
£10.0 ! — - — - - i
M Minimum business case benefit scenario - £34m !
£0.0 i i
| £25.6m !
2 -£10.0 ' !
2 ! £15.6m !
2 00 i Overlap with existing Directorate Savings i
L F]
£30.0 £22.7m t_
-£40.0
The estimated benefit range to be
-£50.0 delivered through the TOM includes
£15.6m of overlap with existing
£60.0 - £57.8m Directorate Savings
-£70.0
Pressures, Improvements and Corporate measures Directorate Savings (existing Operating Model Benéefits (including re-profiled
investments MTFP savings) transformation savings)

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



gG abed

( 7(

O X FO R D 'S H I R E s
%Y COUNTY COUNCIL

The TOM has been reviewed by each service area in order to understand the
impact on the service and the gap between current and future ways of

working...

Service impact & gap analysis approach

There has been a range of opportunities to consider service impact throughout the design process. In addition, each service area (based on CLT
members and their direct reports) has had two dedicated opportunities (one at the end of the high level design phase and one at the end of
the detailed design phase) to review the emerging TOM design and comment on the potential impact of the proposed design on the service.

In addition at the end of the detailed design phase the service areas were also asked to capture the gap (H/M/L) between the proposed way of
working set out in the TOM and the current way of working within the service area. These gaps have been used to inform the composition and

sequencing of each of the proposed releases set out on slide 26.

Service impact testing round 1 (High level design)

At the end of the high level design phase service areas were asked
to review the high level design and RAG rate a series of statements
summarising the key changes arising from the TOM based on their
impact on the service. Services also discussed a number of changes
and opportunities for the Front Office in their areas.

Proposed change Proposed change Proposed change
would result in would work for would work for the
service area not service area but service area...
being able to fulfil consideration would

statutory obligations need to be given to...

due to...

Service Impact Testing RAG Key....

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case

Service impact testing round 2 (detailed design)

At the end of the detailed design phase service areas were asked to
repeat the RAG rating exercise (based on the additional
information provided) and to consider the gap between the

proposed future way of working and the current way of working
within that service area.

I R R

Significant gap Medium gap Low gap between
between current between current current state and
state and future state and future future state.
state. state.
Gap Analysis Key....



B OXFORDSHIRE
Yy COUNTY COUNCIL

Although service areas across the Council broadly believe changes will have a
positive impact, there is still a considerable gap to move to future ways of
working...

- Summary of service impact & gap analysis across the Council
Proactive signposting
Digital customer portal

Digital self-service
Customer management

6G abed

Multi-skilled customer management function

Multi-purpose face-to-face sites

Strategic customer approach

Improved screening & triage

Simplifying non-complex assessments
Customer assessment Channel shift to reduce manual interventions

Streamlining complex assessments

Enhanced partnership working & shared records

=<

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



&2 OXFORDSHIRE
Y COUNTY COUNCIL

Although service areas across the Council broadly believe changes will have a
positive impact, there is still a considerable gap to move to future ways of
working...

- Summary of service impact & gap analysis across the Council (cont.)

More Active Engagement

§ Category Management M
D

8 Provision cycle Strategic Contract Management M

Operational Contract Management H

Transparent Governance M

Self Service H

Business Partnering M

Enabling & support services Centrally managed BAS H

Virtual BAS Teams H

Functional BAS Teams M

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



&2 OXFORDSHIRE
Y COUNTY COUNCIL

Although service areas across the Council broadly believe changes will have a
positive impact, there is still a considerable gap to move to future ways of
working...

- Summary of service impact & gap analysis across the Council (cont.)

Strategy & Policy Definition —
g Project Management Framework — H
«Q
D
o)) Clear project approval process H
= Strategic capability
Single view of corporate performance — M
Streamlined performance reporting — M
Outcome based KPIS at a corporate level — M
Automated standardised reporting — M
Business intelligence Quality assurance checks — H
Data will be easy to update and share — H

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



29 abed

22 OXFORDSHIRE
Y COUNTY COUNCIL

The outputs from this have been used to develop a plan for how the Council

should construct and implement its TOM...

Target implementation plan*

The implementation plan

. SE : Dt i M Dec Ja Feb
shown opposite sets out at e B e Rt s

Mor : Apr | May | June | luly | Aug | Sept | Oct | Mov | Dec 2020

a high level the activities
required to construct and
implement the Council’s

Releases involved a series
of stepped changes to
process, people and
technology required by
each layer of the Council’s
TOM as well as service
areas in order to achieve
the target benefits. Full
detail of activities is
included in Section 7.

The County Leadership
Team will further develop
this high-level release plan
in order to confirm a
realistic phased approach
to implementation given
operational and regulatory
factors.

TOM over the next 2 years.

Fmr,lrumm! -
morogement ond

implementation : Develon rdlease
planning plnn_’m I

Ltrategic odvice,
oversight and core _ Ongaing stroteghc adivee ard suppart
team z I ]

Cngoing PRT SUpRot

{Pre mnblll::.'.ha-.

Helea-se 1 Release ] Release 3 Release 4 =——p

o ' | |
fine Org. I I i
xr1n1nm ] ] H]

[ogmi ) 1

Service construct

; I
1
i | 1 i
HR ond OD sugpart ] [ ] 1
Embred new ways of I !_-_-_-'- ______ i
wanking ] i il i i 1
......... : Golive2 [
L
_ - ‘ _ [ | !
----- —----------I-----_---l ] i
: i ; Golive3 |
| |
: i1 K L
: E. e e e
Additional ml:.'mm_rml
requirements engugEmant i
|
Key N.B. The precise make up and ordering of eoch release will be determined during the implementation

pianning and pre-mobilization work.

Inderim support Release 1 Release 2 Release 3 Aeloase & G ue
& mukilsation acinities aciriiies ackrtes acttics

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



g abed

Implementation roadmap
The table below shows an indicative ordering of the horizontal layer components of the TOM and vertical service areas covered in each release.
These have been prioritised based on the benefits that can be released, the risk associated with implementation, along with speed and complexity
to implement. It should be noted that there will be a time lag from when technology goes live to when benefits can be realised.

HSos OXFORDSHIRE s
%Y COUNTY COUNCIL

This includes the following implementation roadmap showing the proposed
composition of each release...

TOM layer (involves all service areas)

* Customer Management

* Customer Assessment
1 * Provision Cycle

* Business Intelligence

* Strategic Capability

2 * Pre-front door
3 * N/A
4 * N/A

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case

* Enabling & Support Services

Residual service area redesign (All service areas will be impacted by the implementation of
the horizontal TOM layers)

Remainder of:
* Policy
* Customer Experience

Remainder of:

* Infrastructure Operations
* Planning and Place

* Public Health

* Law & Governance

Remainder of:

* Adult’s Services

* Oxfordshire Fire and Rescue

* Investment and Capital Delivery

Remainder of:
e Children’s Services

* HR
* Finance
e T

This high-level view will be updated and a more detailed release plan created in preparation for Construct and Implement. The implementation of
horizontal layers will involve change and create opportunities for all service areas, but the implementation plan will also need to reflect how
functions within service areas might be ordered across different releases. The plan will need to ensure there is sufficient review and approval time
for key milestones and is likely to need further refinement when technology decisions are made.

£4.0m

£f4.1m

£11.3m

£8.5m



79 abed

2 OXFORDSHIRE

IR

%Y COUNTY COUNCIL

This business case provides the Council with a comprehensive design for a
more efficient and effective organisation. The Council now has a decision to

make about whether it wants to implement this design and how it wants to
do that...

Next steps

The Council has taken significant steps towards becoming a more efficient and effective organisation in the future. The operating model

assessment enabled the Council to look at itself in a holistic manner, to understand how its effort and resource were being deployed and to
develop an overarching case for change.

The subsequent design of the Council’s TOM has engaged staff from right across the organisation to set out an exciting vision of the future, and

a roadmap for transforming the whole Council over the next two years. The Council now has a decisions to make about whether it wants to
implement this design and how it wants to do that.

October January August October October
Y 2017 Y 2018 Y 2018 Y 2018 Y 2020
Key decision
point
Following the completion Implementation of the core
of the detailed design components of the new operating
x@ X < phase a decision will be model including char?ge an.d p.roject

& N2 & made as to the approach management, benefit realisation
@Q &Q @Q the Council will take to and technology implementation.
(,o (,o (,o implementation and how Duration: c. 18 months - 2 years

the Council wants to
deliver this.



G9 abed

2 OXFORDSHIRE

wIrs

%Y COUNTY COUNCIL

The decision as to whether or not the Council chooses to implement the
TOM is of critical importance. Delay will impact on the benefit profile and
will reduce the options the Council has to enhance service provision and
ensure financial sustainability...

Conclusion
The Operating Model and the approach to implementation described in this Business Case has been designed to tackle the particular challenges
faced by Oxfordshire County Council. Successful implementation will enable the Council to address the issues identified in the analysis

conducted during the summer of 2017. It will ensure the Council is better equipped to cope with ongoing financial pressure as well as improve
outcomes and experience for residents and staff.

Implementing the TOM will enable the Council to adopt an approach that is consistent, streamlined, entrepreneurial, agile, innovative and
ambitious. It will provide an opportunity to address existing inefficiencies in the way the Council is organised and operated. It will enhance the
Council’s capacity and capability to address front line service challenges — enabling specialists to focus on delivering better outcomes for
residents, at the same time as improving efficiency and resilience within services and at a whole council level.

Fundamentally, the transformation described in this document will provide an opportunity to achieve these benefits at the same time as
reducing the cost of running the Council. While the Council has made prudent decisions in the past about its finances, ensuring it is in a better
position than many other local authorities, it will still need to make significant savings in the coming years. Implementing the TOM will enable
the Council to meet this challenge by reducing expenditure in certain areas by design.

The consequences of not implementing the Operating Model are difficult to quantify. To some extent, the Council has been attempting to
achieve the benefits described above, but without the coherence and structure an Operating Model implementation programme provides, for
many years. The Council’s own assessment of the effectiveness of this programme suggests that the benefits achieved have been somewhat
limited. If the Council decides not to pursue the more structured approach described in this document, or opts for a partial implementation
aimed at achieving the minimum level of benefit required to meet existing pressures, then it is highly likely that the required reductions in
spending will be apportioned out across existing services, with the result that any progress that is achieved will become piecemeal, levels of risk
will increase and there would be a greater likelihood of unforeseen consequences arising.

Implementing the TOM in full, following a structured and coherent programme and investing in the right level of support and enabling
technology, offers the Council the best chance of securing a strong and sustainable future, delivering on its strategic objectives and playing its
part in improving the lives of everyone living and working in Oxfordshire.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



2. Context & approach




#3%) COUNTY COUNCIL

Local government continues to face significant uncertainty especially in
terms of decreased funding and increasing demand for its services...

Context

Local government continues to face an unprecedented set of challenges. Further reductions in central government funding are creating a 20-
30% funding gap, and there is increasing demand for existing and new services. Increasing budgetary pressures and service demand mean that
councils have to do more with less.

PwC’s Local State We're In 2018 review, an annual survey that consults local authority CEOs and Leaders, identified the following key themes
which have begun to emerge;

Fear of failure is rising: Almost a third of councils now feel that the ‘cliff edge’ is imminent and are not confident of their ability to
deliver next year.

Confidence in the financial sustainability of the sector is reducing: When it comes to considering the sector as a whole, almost
three quarters (74%) of respondents think that some local authorities will get into serious financial crisis in the next year.

Councils are at the heart of public service reform: As councils shift their thinking towards driving public service reform across
their place, six out of ten respondents agree that councils should be more responsible for facilitating outcomes rather than
delivering services.

Good growth continues to climb the agenda: Place based growth has also risen up the agenda with councils’ priorities for growth
largely reflecting those of the public with skills, housing and transport topping the agenda. However, significant challenges remain
in each of these areas, such as lack of investment in infrastructure, the impact of Brexit, lack of affordable or suitable housing and
lack of influence over skills.

Significant capacity and capability gaps remain: Councils need to build organisational resilience and in particular develop new
skills and commercial acumen in order to be effective. Areas in particular need of development are supply chain management,
contract management, talent management, cyber security and data analytics. Rising market pressures in key sectors such as social
care require the right capability, capacity and agility to respond to provider challenges and unpredictable circumstances.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



g9 abed

B OXFORDSHIRE
Yy COUNTY COUNCIL

Oxfordshire County Council (OCC) is in a better position than many Councils
but still has to make changes in order to solve the challenges they face...

Background

While the Council’s current financial pressures do not constitute an immediate ‘burning platform’, there is a recognition amongst the County
Leadership Team (CLT) that OCC faces a number of challenges which the Council must be forward thinking in addressing in order to achieve
their strategic ambition of creating, and maintaining, “Thriving communities for everyone in Oxfordshire”.

The challenges facing OCC

Requirement to be fit for the future

The local government landscape is changing

Closer collaboration with the wider public
sector

Improving efficiency of current services

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case

OCC recognises the need to be fit for the future. It understands it needs to
improve its overall efficiency and effectiveness, while recognising, and
building on, those areas of good performance (e.g. Children’s Services
Ofsted report).

Local councils are experiencing a period of unprecedented pressure.
Demand for services is rising and customer expectations are changing. For
OCC this is manifesting itself in increasing demand for social care as well as
additional pressures across other core service areas.

At the same time, OCC is working closely with local district councils,
specifically Cherwell District Council, and other public sector partners such
as the NHS to identify opportunities for closer collaboration across the
whole system.

The Council understands that having the right people with the right skills
to perform the right activity at the right time will be crucial to achieving its
vision to be fit for the future.




69 abed

28 OXFORDSHIRE
&Y COUNTY COUNCIL

Specifically OCC faces cumulative budgetary pressures of £57.8m to 2021/22
driven by demographic changes, legislative changes and existing savings
initiatives that are not expected to be delivered...

Scale of the financial challenge

In the most recent Service & Resource Planning 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 Total
2018/19 to 2021/22 report Council officers identified £m £m £m £m £m

that over the next four years the Council faces

lative budeet £ £57.8m. dri Pressures,
cumulative budgetary pressures of £>7.om, driven Improvements &  £46.223m £7.318m £4.547m (£0.330m) £57.758m
by: Investments

* Demographic pressures, including increasing Directorate

numbers of Children requiring placements and an Savings (£16.790m) (£7.730m) (£0.734m) (£0.325m) (£25.579m)
increase in the number of children with disabilities
* Legislative pressures, including those continuing CRlpeE (£29.433m) £10.412m £0.387m (£4.021m) (£22.655m)
. . . Measures
to arise as a result of the implementation of the
National Living Wage ;
;;i?;;zrmat'm £0.000m (£10.000m)  (£4.200m) (£3.200m)  (£17.400m)

* Existing savings initiatives that are not expected to

be achieved, including those related to services Net Pressure /
provided or commissioned for older people and (Saving) £0.000m £0.000m £0.000m (£7.876m) (£7.876m)
people with learning disabilities

In response to these pressures, the Council has OCC - Overall Financial Position 2018/22 (as at August 2018)

identified a number savings initiatives (a combination
of corporate measures, MTFP savings and
Transformation Savings) the successful delivery of
which will be critical to ensuring it is able to meet the
challenges it faces and succeed in delivering against
its strategic ambition.

Central to ensuring that OCC is able to respond to the financial challenges it faces, and for
other pressures that are likely to develop in the future, is the need for the Council to
develop an operating model that is efficient and effective, and facilitates a transformation
in the way in which it delivers, or commissions, services for residents.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



0/ abed

28 OXFORDSHIRE
s/ COUNTY COUNCIL

In response to these challenges the Council
has embarked on a journey to transform its
operating model...

Overview

Over the last 12 months the Council has embarked on a journey aimed at transforming
its operating model in order to respond to the many challenges it faces.

Activity analysis
To begin with the Council undertook an activity analysis to help it understand how

staff effort was being deployed across the Council.

Operating Model Assessment

Building on the findings from the Activity Analysis the Council then
completed an assessment of its current operating model
culminating in a case for change.

High level design

Following acceptance of the case for change the Council developed a high level
design setting out what its target operating model could look like.

a Detailed design

Building on the high level design the Council then completed a subsequent
phase of design work setting out how the target operating would work in the
future.

TOM Business case

Finally the high level and detailed designs were pulled togetherinto a
summary business case.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case

The operating model
transformation journey...

July 2017
Activity analysis
starts.

October 2017

Operating Model
Assessment starts.

February 2018

High level design of
target operating
model starts.

May 2018

Detailed design of
target operating
model starts.

27t July 2018

September 2017

Activity analysis
report
completed.

January 2018

Case for Change
completed.

April 2018

CLT Away Day to review
outputs from high level

design.

July 2018

CLT Away day to
review detailed
design.

TOM Business case

completed




T/ obed

Q0 0 6 O

The output from the activity analysis and the operating model assessment
was a case for change setting out how the Council could operate in the

future...

The case for change

The operating model assessment identified a number of challenges
with the way the Council is currently organised, including:

The Council does not consistently demonstrate
leading practice in the delivery of support services.

Decision making across the Council is not robustly
informed by data and insight.

The Council has not fully exploited the potential of
digital technology.

There is duplication and fragmentation of staff
effort across all areas of the Council.

The Council is not clear on how it will achieve its
strategic ambitions.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case

Based on the findings from the operating model assessment, the
case for change identified the following opportunities for how OCC
could operate differently in the future:

Business model themes

Place-based

Unlocking the
transformation power of
and leadership communities

Partnership &

integrated working

Operating model themes

Service provision Digital workforce -
and delivery mobile/ agile
models working

Commercialisation
& income

Customer
management
models

Procurement &
commissioning

Enabling &
Support Services

Role of the

Strategic core/ Bl
& reporting manager

Digital



2/ obed

¢ COUNTY COUNCIL

12852 O X FO R D'S H I R E. s

The case for change identified that, through operating differently, the Council

could achieve the following benefits ...

Benefits

The case for change identified that, through addressing these
opportunities, OCC could achieve between £33m - £58m of saving
made up of the following:

It was estimated that OCC
could achieve a minimum

FTE £21m of benefit, but that
Savings there was the potential to
achieve more than this (up to
Quick wins £33m)

Operating model
transformation

It was estimated OCC could
achieve at least £8m of
benefit, but there was the
potential to go achieve more
than this (up to £17m)

Strategic sourcing
& process
improvements

3 party
Spend

It was estimated OCC could
achieve at least £4m of
benefit, but there was the
potential to achieve more
than this (up to £8m)

Income Commercialisation

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case

Alongside the financial benefits shown opposite the case for change
also identified that by addressing these opportunities OCC could
achieve the following outcomes:

“Are enabled to resolve their own issues. Their
experience of the Council will be on a level with
what they experience in other parts of their lives
and will live up to their expectations.”

Customers

Services “The Council’s critical services will better able to
cope with future pressures and less likely to fail.”

Staff “Staff will feel empowered to help the Council
deliver its ambitions.”

Communities  “The transformation of the Council’s operating
model will exploit the local advantages
Oxfordshire possesses.”

This would give the Council some choices:

“Reinvest in alternative delivery
models to achieve long term
sustainability”

+ £

“Release cash to deal with
existing financial pressures”

RS ---:_‘_'E_.__> :



¢) abed

22 OXFORDSHIRE
Y COUNTY COUNCIL

Alongside this the case for change recommended that developing a target
operating model (TOM) would put OCC in the best position to achieve these

benefits...

Developing a target operating model

The case for change provided a deep understanding of both the issues
facing OCC and the opportunities it has to change.

Its key recommendation was that through developing a target
operating model (TOM) OCC could pull together all of the identified
opportunities for change into a single, coherent, transformation
programme.

What is an operating model?

An operating model is a term that is widely used and has a variety of
interpretations.

For OCC an operating model is a representation of how the Council
uses it’s customer offerings, business capabilities and corporate
structure to deliver the best possible outcomes for its residents in
keeping with its council vision.

What is a target operating model (TOM)?

OCC currently has an operating model that the case for change
identified as having a significant number of weaknesses leading to in-
efficiency, in-effectiveness and higher operating costs.

A TOM, purposefully developed and designed, will provide OCC with a
design blueprint against which to build an organisation that is capable
of providing all of the products and services that its customers require
in a more efficient and effective way.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case

The case for change described at a high level what the Council’s TOM
could look like (shown below) and recommended that the Council
undertake a phase of design work to develop out the TOM in more
detail.

Demand Management (“Pre-Front Door”)

t unit . g ppo; xary s, al car, \ pare,
@MY g o Yay, o SUPPORE T S e ot e, #Toe? 7,
& %o < e, A ‘e, o oy W s of Cnp

= Vi LRV~ RV W W
° e e - (™) N 8
— & Oy @ | Qb' r - = JRE
= n:; &% = S ="

Integrated Customer Management, Application & Assessment (“Front Door”)

E r- Signposting and intelligent outbound information
Requests for service and information ./
it atfc

Self serve customerand col

Engquiry Handling
In Service Assessment In Service Assessment In Service Assessment

Service Delivery

e

Commissioning
Intelligent Client

Self Service

Enabling & support services

Procurement & Contract Management
HR & Payroll| [ Administration

Strategic Core

Strategy & Policy Innovation & Project Management QA & Performance Management

Business Intelligence

Dashboards Needs Analysis Customer Insight Predictive Analytics

OCC - Draft target operating model as included in the case
for change




2859 OXFORD S HI RE. s

¢ COUNTY COUNCIL

The design of a new target operating model for the Council was completed in
two stages...

Approach to designing the TOM

The design of the Council’s target operating model started in February 2018 and concluded in July 2018.

The work took place across two phases (high level design and detailed design), the purpose of which is set out below.

High level design phase Detailed design phase

Y The high level design phase focused on... The detailed design phase focused on...
) * Defining the key inputs to the Council’s target operating model * Reviewing the emerging design blueprints against the outputs
~ including customer personas, strategic parameters and the from the engagement with staff and service areas.
A needs and characteristics of each of the nine localities within
Oxfordshire. * Designing, to an increased level of detail, the operating model
components needed to enable the successful delivery of the in-
 Designing, at a high level, the operating model components scope business capabilities (focusing on how they will operate in
needed to enable the successful delivery of the in-scope the future).

business capabilities.
* Describing, in further detail, the outcomes, experience and

* Describing the benefits, outcomes and experience of the in- benefits of the new design for the in-scope business capabilities.

scope business capabilities.
* Testing with staff and services to further test and refine the

* Testing the emerging design with a range of council staff detailed design blueprint.
involved in the current delivery of the in-scope business
capabilities as well as with service areas to understand the * Planning out the approach the Council will need to take in order
implications of the emerging design. to implement the detailed design.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



22 OXFORDSHIRE
s/ COUNTY COUNCIL

Design of each layer of the TOM was supported by a working group
comprised of experienced officers and supplemented by additional

engagement as required, including with members...

Officer engagement with design process

Held at least one design session
per week with each operating
model layer working group, led by
a member of the County
Leadership Team.

o 100

design sessions

G, abed

Member engagement with design process

Fortnightly briefings with portfolio
holder for transformation.

Delivered seven cross Council
workshops involving over 150
different members of staff from
right across the Council.

150 ......

of staff from across the
Council.

Held three service impact
workshops (one per directorate)
for High Level Design plus further
sessions for service areas in
Detailed Design

100+

members of staff from
each directorate.

Monthly updates to extended
political group leaders.

Nine briefings for members in their
localities and an All Members
Briefing.

Broader engagement has also taken place through the Innovation Jumpstart approach, which is helping the Council to move to

the ways of working needed for the new TOM. Staff from across the Council were asked to provide ideas for how the Council

could do things differently, with several concepts then being tested and developed further.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



28 OXFORDSHIRE

wIrs

%Y COUNTY COUNCIL

Once the design of the TOM was completed the Council developed a revised
financial case setting out the benefits it could achieve...

Revised financial case

A revised financial case has been produced that sets out the following:

9, abed

1
Target benefits

An overview of the
potential target benefits
that could be delivered

based on the TOM design.

4

Technology costs

A summary of the
technology costs required

to enable the TOM design.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case

2

Benefit levers

A summary of the various
benefit levers that have
been applied as part of the
design of the TOM.

5
Cost / benefit profile

The overall cost / benefit
profile for the TOM driven
by the target benefits,
implementation costs and
technology costs.

3

Implementation
costs

A summary of the various
costs required in order to
implement the TOM
design,

6

Assumptions

A summary of the key
assumptions that underpin
the financial case.



/] abed

The structure of this business case is shown below, which details the design
developed by OCC setting out how it should operate in the future...

= Structure of this business case

1. Target operating model

£ OXFORDSHIRE

think about what it’s TOM could look like...

As part of the case for change, completed in January 2018, OCC began to

b inwoduction

eeovdzarans
Opesingrondel
et s ez i e for At cegan o
Gcccmulby it 3 IO B 2 S8ryica s tsicenes.

o1 12 50 the lars oS TOM are sz ot

e

3~ Toe e gars of an prgavsationoe s

e copnbiities T coemrmat A penple, pentessa
cepanisenion, teceenlogyand informsen thatshe Counc nes g

carire, o A Tunction,

0T Dt et perting moded s ncltesd s e gose
far ange

L @oxrokbsmu
|COUNTY COUNCIL

Key enablers will be required to deliver the Target Operating Model and
maximise the benefits that the Council could achieve through it...

- Tom

sustained, of categories.

available as partof the appendices to this business case.

 laye
Customer i formar
Offering = Management
” i here relevant, specic enab

Tecnelon
e
- ol =
- Centre (1BC)

Each enabler has been described using the following structure:

Tom?

What s the current state assessment o the  How will the enabler be different inthe. ‘What wilhischange actuallylook ke in
councilinregard to this enabler from the o ? the future Tom?

Case for Change)?

3. Revised financial case

£l OXFORDSHIRE
= @coumr COUNCIL

The analysis has validated the benefitsidentified in the case for change...

4. Service impact & gap analysis

OXFORDSHIRE

f— R R RSt

impact on the service and the gap between current and future ways of
working...

The TOM has been reviewead by each service area in order to understand the

5 s 500 s on CLT s et i Soctraparts ™} i i oppestussiios{ ona o e o s eghlavel dolgeghasaand
eeatt the smergng! w g

pope——

5. Construct and implement

oot b ey 38 - F5Bem of patectis e tre g 3 by s

Tt g the oM the Con e ol el veretueen
220 3000 Q. T e o 20y RS

= AR ot A A i A PR .
- ARG ST, B araeig of LS - 803 FIE g || SeE oo
whete o e o be vl £18m of patntil
Aoty prosssand andaoes
et ettt e o .
ol | e
spent

e ssewhere, thers s number ot
BarTunius for nan-gooySrstated Inilzthesia o sddicnst
rovury, urcthur iradinges

o and hirges corvice.
rommercalisatin oppr

% OXFORDSHIRE
f— @ccunn COUNCIL
The Council will need to adopt the ing “ and i
gy inorder to y deliverthe TOM...
A— Implement
eirodtchanipan g lrmad by e ol
sesignsstout * sirace 2 o igsane
, atthesnd

WOrRiNg 561 aut 41 TG TR ang

Sl o Ak 17 AR €543 A it 25 1]

Sacvicn impact tasting round 1 (igh beved design] Sarvice impact testing round  {detaded design]

prepeeed
et Bt sdevice i

future way ot weorking secihe curmentover of ek

St gog Metum g
Betmean s cysncuttant i as s
Matwaitiiie smeshier  fliresiee
. e

Sorviue it Testhng RAG Aoy G Arslystc Koy

+ - pllmetation oftha TOM willraqiré a rast dastof changs, aver & rakitnuly lorg e

+ Chgemustie: e e st o g
thacetote o prester chance of mev ey ofworking Seg cpted.

et wiay 3 T ———
9 53 0 B0 HBIA TGRS 7 T I B 580 O gl EN g Hages

cussasand teckeiagy

y 105 1
Plafor= il b et i s apmsnt mshuco gk aweas Al

+ gl showstummns requivam

eyl s cormpiebed sl e ey
2 s appraach
Ot sty or 03 panDGecy v lang IO R

¢ L e 1| G S5 0 GO 3 TSEADIG ST s, W S Ao
STINAM Gt o P BRI 1§ S S8 G G A

OXFORDSHIRE
=== ¥ counry councit

The ing ri i i part of the design of the Council's

acharvicaare i e with awnars 5signed.
period afmcserainty e . i
comation P ———

© decelerate deyeiroeentfopportciies ot v sirg stafl.

etgeslaotogatonat W B Claa oiearshipof HanSTomMSton eI and marageensatat AU
g ot he delivery Irfarmationartries
o business sl octves
End s wrys of workg i " [
eracticatnat being ity adograd lsad e milgated
and withintha + Cluarcommurication s rsching ol waysclweeking
pr—
Culturesan behmiousdonst ™ I an e
PG NG ey T
eIt aw s aTWOTHINg + EMGCTINS et o o 1 EAUaeeTs.
are nutroacec. + Cluarbuyie od sporezeshi fram i eaders whiniha Counc.
The e e opfom L W
Fasidans o
oirealisad, ot takus oo g i e
Fasch {argutsand gomarai » kn ffctvo pronsions for kst (3] surves,
Femuire i ram e -

gl lstform.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case




3. Target operating model




2 OXFORDSHIRE
Y COUNTY COUNCIL

As part of the case for change, completed in January 2018, OCC began to
think about what it’s TOM could look like...

Introduction

The case for change described at a high level what the Council’s TOM
could look like (shown below).

Demand Management (“Pre-Front Door”)

it unity upp. ary s, al car, \ part,
unity g~ @ 3, i suPPor o & o e, < Ne,
0, & S s N Sat ta, St s N s o ey

) d U \5":e G e 2 ™ iy b
- i’i y = m o.af g “‘@ * rﬂ‘ @ y s "\"’ '.ri\
—_ L) () GB B¢ | sor . — an
= B &% . B 2 =
d Customer M ent, Application & A (“Front Door”)

Signposting and intelligent outbound information

Requests for service and information

Self serve customer and community platform

In Service Assessment In Service Assessment In Service Assessment

Service Delivery
Trede /shere pernershes m
Enabling & support services

Commissioning
Intelligent Client

Self Service
Procurement & Contract Management
HR & Payroll || Administration

Strategic Core

Strategy & Policy Innovation & Project Management QA & Performance Management

Business Intelligence

OCC - Draft target operating model as included in the case
for change

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case

The Council’s high level TOM is comprised of the following (all of
which have been worked up in more detail during the development of
this business case).

For the purposes of the design phase OCC have grouped together
similar elements of its operating model into ‘Jayers’ in order to ensure
that all commonalities and similarities are captured in order to
provide a consistent experience for Customers.

Operating model layers — The different parts of an organisation or a
business that are required in order for that organisation or business to
successfully provide a product or a service to its customers.

For the Council the layers of its TOM are made up of:

Business capabilities — The combination of people, processes,
organisation, technology and information that the Council needs to
deliver a specific outcome(s) for customers and support its
organisational objectives, e.g. a finance function, customer contact
centre, or HR function.

Enablers — The specific people, processes, technology, assets and
information required in order to enable the delivery of a business
capability (or capabilities) e.g. a website, finance system or
accountants.



08 abed

wIrs

£2 OXFORDSHIRE
&%/ COUNTY COUNCIL

This section of the business case sets out the work the Council has
undertaken to design its Target Operating Model...

Designing the Target Operating Model

a

Key inputs to
the TOM design

The design of the
Council’s TOM has
been informed by a

number of key
inputs.

These include: the
Council’s strategy,
the requirement to
be responsive to the
needs and
characteristics of
the various localities
within the County,
and the needs and
wants of Customers.

b

Design
principles

The County
Leadership Team
(CLT) developed a

set of design

principles that have
been used to guide
the design of the
TOM.

In addition to this
each working group
developed a set of
layer specific design
principles as well.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case

C

Layers of the
TOM

To support with the
design process the
Council’s high level
TOM was divided up
into ‘layers’ in order to
ensure that all
commonalities and
similarities between
business capabilities
are captured in order
to provide a consistent
experience for
Customers.

d
The ‘Front Office’

This sub-section
provides a summary of
those layers of the
operating model that
are focused on
interactions with the
Council’s customers.

These are: Pre-front
door, Customer
management and
Customer assessment.

e
The ‘Back Office’

This sub-section provides
a summary of those layers
of the operating model
that primarily provide
capabilities to other areas
of the organisation.

These are: The Provision
Cycle, Enabling & Support
Services, The strategic
capability and Business
Intelligence.



3a. Key inputs to the target
operating model design




28 abed

8% OXFORDSHIRE

wIrs

%Y COUNTY COUNCIL

The design of the Council’s TOM has been informed by the following key

inputs...

Key inputs

It is critical that the Council’s TOM is informed by an understanding of its customers, its strategic vision and the needs and characteristics of the

physical place it serves.

As part of the design of the TOM, consideration has been given to each of these key inputs:

B

Strategy

The Council has a clear strategic ambition
and vision for the type of local authority
that it wants to be, as set out in the
2018-2021 Corporate Plan.

From this a set of strategic parameters
have been developed that have been
used throughout the design process to
test and challenge each and every
emerging design concept in order to
ensure that it aligns with the Council’s
ambition and vision.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case

Place

Consideration has also been given to the
needs and characteristics of Oxfordshire
as a place and the various localities
within Oxfordshire.

The Council is clear in its ambition to
become more of a place based authority,
which is responsive to the needs and
characteristics of local communities. This
has led to a number of key decisions /
choices that have been focused on as
part of the design of the TOM.

[ N )
() 4
Customer

‘Customer’ is used as an overarching term
to refer to any person or group of people
that is part of the Council or interacts with
itin some way.

It is recognised that there is a diverse
range of customers with many different
needs and circumstances. In order to
inform the design process, broad customer
groups were identified and used to test,
challenge and amend the design of each
layer of the operating model and ensure
that it remains customer focused.

Throughout the construct and
implementation phase, significant further
customer analysis and engagement across
the full range of county council customers
and service users will be required.



cq abed

Strategy



#9%) COUNTY COUNCIL
The Council has a clear strategic ambition and vision for what type of local

12852 O X F O R DS H I R E. o

authority it wants to be and what it wants to achieve for residents...

78 abed

Strategic vision

o
v

i3]

Thriving communities

We help people live safe, healthy lives
and play an active part in their
community.

We provide services that enhance the
quality of life in our communities, and
protect the local environment.

“Thriving communities for everyone in Oxfordshire”

To achieve our vision, we will listen to residents so we can continuously improve our services and provide value for money.

Our priorities
(X )

w

Thriving people

We strive to give every child a good start in
life, and protect everyone from abuse and

neglect.

We enable older and disabled people to live
independently and care for those in greatest

need.

a
v

=

(=
Thriving economy

We support a thriving local economy
by improving transport links to create
jobs and homes for the future.

With this strategic ambition in mind, the Council has already begun to think about how its business model will need to change:

“More transactions will be digital. We will dispose of

“We will increasingly involve people
who use services and their families to
design, buy and evaluate the quality

“We will continue to move
away from the traditional
top-down service design
and delivery model”

properties we do not need or generate an income
from them. We will also work with partners and
central government to join up local services”

of those services”

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case




Gg abed

wIrs

€8 OXFORDSHIRE
%/ COUNTY COUNCIL

From this a set of strategic parameters have been developed which have
been considered as part of the development of the Council’s TOM...

Linking the TOM to the Council’s strategic direction

These parameters for the TOM ensures it will help members and staff at all levels to realise the council’s strategy.

...an integrator with joint operational commissioning functions with
other public bodies, commissioning with ‘one voice’. Increasingly the
Council will act as the fulcrum through which other public bodies as well
as itself commission outcomes.

This may mean having less direct control, but improved influence, while
also needing investment in developing the capabilities of partners.

...a co-ordinating council, shaping markets ‘ ...a community-led approach where the Council and
and providing the tools, capability and its partners will provide strategic oversight with

platform for residents, businesses and others budgets and operational commissioning increasingly
to become more self reliant. delegated to a local level.

This may mean brokering provision and Thlsl.ma.\y mear? the f(;cfus ison d.(ryelorlng capa?blllty
enabling access to solutions, without ro € I',mlg‘zteF .e needfor coun.a. |n\r/]o lver:ent ml
necessarily providing them yourself. A clear ocalised decisions as communities help themselves.

procurement and market management
strategy is required.
...in line with the co-ordinating council principle there will

be a move to relying more on influencing and focusing
commissioning on strategic priorities and outcomes.

Oxfordshire
County Council

&

...a decisive focus on the areas in which the council has the
opportunity to trade and grow, where it offers potential for
revenue and enhanced customer service.

This may mean agreeing a framework for defining a limited

. . . number of priorities with a high chance of generating returns

policy and commissioning capability. . o . . . .
and investing in their success, not spreading capacity too thinly.

This may mean developing a more strategic intelligence,

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



Place

Page 86



/8 abed

&2 OXFORDSHIRE
Y COUNTY COUNCIL

Consideration has also been given to the key needs and characteristics of

Oxfordshire as a place...

*Further detail on the needs and characteristics of
Oxfordshire as a place is available at Appendix A.

Key needs and characteristics of Oxfordshire

LSOAs are small geographic =P Score of 1= most deprived

areas of approximately 1,500
residents designed for

reporting purposes. There are
32,844 LSOAs in England and
414 in Oxfordshire

Average IMD Score (Deciles)

5.50-5.99

6.00—-6.49

6.50-6.99

7.00-7.49

Oxfordshire is the 4th |east deprived county in England. However levels of
deprivation differ vastly between measures and between areas of the county.

Oxfordshire is the 3rd least deprived county in England in
terms of income, almost a whole decile less deprived than its
CIPFA nearest neighbours.

7.50-7.99

8.00-8.49

WOODSTOCK,

Oxfordshire is the 3rd least deprived county in England in
terms of employment, with 54% of LSOAs in the 20% least
deprived nationally.

CHARLBURY,

8.50-8.99

CHIPPING NORTON,
EYNSHAM

Score of 10 = least
deprived

BICESTER

ARTERTO HAME, WHEATLEY,

WATLINGTON,
BERINSFIELD,

FARINGDON,
GROVE, WANTAGE

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case

Oxfordshire is the 4th least deprived county in England in
terms of education, with 66% of LSOAs less deprived than the
national average.

Oxfordshire is the 18th most deprived county in England in
terms of barriers to housing, over a decile more deprived than
its CIPFA nearest neighbours.

Oxfordshire is the 20th most deprived county in England in
terms of geographical barriers to services, worse than the
national average but close to the CIPFA average.

Oxfordshire is the 3rd least deprived county in England in
terms of health. 85% of LSOAs are less deprived than the
national average.

SCEF DY




g9g abed

As well as how far the Council wishes to go in terms of being a place based
local authority...

Place based aspirations

Thinking about the needs and characteristics of Oxfordshire as a place has identified some key choices facing the Council in terms of the role it
wants to play within the community.

! OCC aspires to be... | A mo